
SPECIAL ISSUE

 

THE KENYA GAZETTE
Published by Authority of the Republic of Kenya

(Registered as a Newspaperat the G.P.O.)

 

 

Vol. CXI_No. 92 NAIROBI, 23rd October, 2009 Price Sh. 50
 

 

GAZETTE NOTICE No.11417

CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS30TH JUNE,2009

DIRECTORS

Prof. Njuguna Ndung’u - Governor and Chairman

MtsJacinta W. Mwatela - Deputy Governor and Deputy Chairman-Retired on 8th September, 2008
Dr. Hezron Nyangito - Deputy Governor and Deputy Chairman-Appointed on 8th September, 2008

Mr. Joseph K. Kinyua - Permanent Secretary-Treasury, Member

Mr. Joseph K. Waiguru - Member

Dr. William O. Ogara - Member

Mr. Nicholas A. Nesbitt - Member

Ms. Agnes Wanjiru - Member
Ms. Wanza Kioko - Member

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Prof. Njuguna Ndung’u - Governor

MtsJacinta W. Mwatela - Deputy Governor —Retired on 8th September, 2008
Dr. Hezron Nyangito - Deputy Governor-Appointed on 8th September, 2008

Mr. Kennedy K. Abuga - Director —Governor’s Office and Board Secretary

Mr. Aggrey JK. Bett - Director — Finance, Resource Planning and Strategy Management

Mr. Jones M. Nzomo - Director - Human Resources and Services Department-Retired on 24th February, 2009

Ms.Rose Detho - Director — Banking Supervision Department

Prof. Kinandu Muragu - Executive Director — Kenya School of Monetary Studies

Mr. William Nyagaka - Director — Internal Audit and Risk Management

Mr. Charles Koori - Director-Research Department-Appointed on 22nd October, 2008
Mtr. Nicholas N. B. T. Korir - Director — Department of Estates, Supplies and Transport

Mr. James T. Lopoyetum - Director — Currency Operations and Branch Administration-Appointed on 18th September, 2008

Mr. Gerald Nyaoma - Director — Banking Department

Mr. Jackson M.Kitili - Director — Monetary Operations and Debt Management

Mr.Peter K. Rotich - Director - Human Resources and Administration-Appointed on 6th May, 2009

REGISTERED OFFICE

Central Bank of Kenya Building

Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000

00200 Nairobi, Kenya

BRANCHES

Mombasa Kisumu
Central Bank of Kenya Building Central Bank of Kenya Building

Nkrumah Road Jomo Kenyatta Highway

P.O. Box 86372 P.O. Box 4

80100, Mombasa, Kenya 40100, Kisumu, Kenya



3094 THE KENYA GAZETTE 23rd October, 2009
 

Eldoret KenyaSchool of Monetary Studies

Kiptagich House Thika Road

Uganda Road PO Box 65041

PO Box 2710 00200 Nairobi, Kenya

30100 Eldoret, Kenya

AUDITORS MAIN LAWYERS

Ernst and Young Oraro and Co Advocates

Kenya - Re Towers, Upperhill ACK Garden House

Off Ragati Road lst Ngong Avenue

PO Box 44286 PO Box 51236

00100 Nairobi, Kenya 00200 Nairobi, Kenya

DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE,2009

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2009, which showsthe state of affairs of

the Bank.

1. INCORPORATION

The Bank is incorporated under the Central Bank of Kenya Act Cap 491(the Act).

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is established and administered under the Act with the principal object of formulating and implementing monetary policy directed

to achieving and maintaining stability in the general level of prices. It is also the responsibility of the Bank to foster liquidity, solvency and

proper functioning of a stable market-based financial system. The Bank also acts as banker, advisor and fiscal agent of the Government of

Kenya.

RESULTS

3.1 Financial Results

Theresults for the year as set out below show that the Bank recorded a profit of KSh. 23,229 million against a profit of KSh. 8,995 million in

2008. This substantial higher performance over the previous year is due to foreign currency translation gains that amounted to KSh. 13,462
million in the year under review compared to only a gain of KSh. 54 million in 2008 and proceeds from sale of Grand Regency Hotel

amounting to KShs 3,141 million. The Bank held the hotel as a security against a receivable that had been fully provided for. Contributing to

this performance also are expenses associated with conduct of monetary policy that were lower than the previous year’s by KShs 1,306

million owingto less need for mop-ups dueto tight liquidity prevailing in the economy for most part of the year under review. These positive
financial performances were tempered by foreign currency earnings that were KShs 3,373 million (32%) lower than in 2008 owing to the

ongoing global economic turmoil. Some operating expenses such as currency printing costs, property maintenance and others were higher

than previous year’s by a total of KShs 1,479 million (29%). Currency printing costs increased due to change in accounting policy on

treatment ofthe printing costs hence the more the new notes were issued into circulation the higher the amortised cost.

3.2 Financial Position

The financial position of the Bank is set out in the Balance Sheet below. During the year under review, the assets of the Bank increased by
KShs 36,539 million (13%). The increase is mainly due to balances due from internationalinstitutions that increased by KShs 23,248 million

or 10%, balances in reverse Repo Treasury Bills and Bonds (money injections into the economy) that increased by KShs 7,947 million or

113% and loans and advances (Governmentoverdraft) which stood at KShs 5,124 million at the end of the year comparedto a nil balance last

year and against the statutory limit of KShs 16 billion. In an effort to maintain the required statutory import cover, the Bank built its foreign
currency reserves during the year by a net of KShs 23,248 million in shilling terms through earnings from foreign currency investments,

purchases of foreign currency, loan from IMF and revaluation gains. The reverse Repos were necessitated by the need for the Bank to inject

liquidity into the economy by lending to commercial banks owingto tight liquidity prevailing in the money market for the better part of the

financial year. These main increases were countered by minor decreases and increases in balancesofotherassets.

Correspondingly, liabilities and equity also increased by KShs 36,539 million (13%) mainly due to increases in currency in circulation by

KShs 8,292 million or 9%, loans from IMF by KShs 17,751 million or 86% and equity by KShs KShs 20,751 million or 114%. The increase in

currency in circulation mitror demand for cash in the economy while the increase in equity is due mainly to the net profit for the year. The

above increasein liabilities were mitigated by decreases of KShs 5,504 million in commercial bank and Government deposits, KShs 1,807

million in Repo transactions and KShs 2, 975 million in otherliabilities.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommend paymentofKShs 7.2 billion dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: KShs4 billion).

DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year and up to the date ofthis report are listed below.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, were appointed during the financial year 2006/2007in line with the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005

for a period of three years and the term expires on conclusionofthe audit of the year under review.

By order of the Board

Dated the 24th September, 2009.

K. K. ABUGA,

Board Secretary.
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STATEMENTOF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH

JUNE, 2009

We,the directors, certify that:

Weare responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial year which present a true and fair view of the state of affairs

of the Bank and of its operating results for that year. We are also responsible in ensuring that the Bank keeps proper accounting records

which disclose with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Bank.

Weaccept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by

reasonable and prudent judgement and estimates, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required

by the Central Bank of Kenya Act.

Weate responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank.

Weare responsible for establishing and maintaining systems of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance asto the integrity
andreliability of the Bank’s financial reporting.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 fairly present the financial position and

operating results of the Bank.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Bank will not remain a going concern for at least twelve months from

the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

NJUGUNA NDUNG’U WILLIAM O. OGARA

Governor Director

Dated the 24th September, 2009.

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Central Bank of Kenya is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya. The Bank is established by and derives its authority and accountability
from CBK Act Cap 491 of the laws of Kenya. The Bank is committed to maintaining the highest standardsof integrity, professionalism and business

ethics in all its operations.

Board of Directors

Section 11 of the CBK Act Cap 491 provides that the Board of Directors shall constitute the Governor whois also the Chairman, Deputy Goveror,

whoshall also be the Deputy Chairman, the Permanent Secretary to the Treasury, who is a non-voting memberand five Non-Executive Directors.

Other than the Permanent Secretary to the Treasury whois ex-officio,all the others are appointed by the President of the Republic of Kenya for terms

of four years cach andare eligible for reappointment provided that no Governor, Deputy Governorordirector shall hold office for more than two

terms.

Currently there are five Non-Executive Directors namely Messrs Joseph K. Waiguru, Nicholas A. Nesbitt, William O. Ogara, Ms Wanza Kioko and

Ms Agnes Wanjiru whoareall serving their first term. All the Non-Executive Directors are independent of management and free from any business

or other relationship, which could interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

Board Meetings

The Board meets once every six weeks and has a formal schedule of agenda items due for deliberations. The Directors are given appropriate and

timely information to maintain full and effective control over strategic, financial and operational issues. The Board is not involved in the conduct of

day-to-day businessas this is a responsibility given to the Governor by the CBK Act Cap 491. It, however, retains responsibility for determining the

policy of the Bank.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is chaired by Dr. William O. Ogara and has three other members who are Non-Executive Directors having experience in
Accounting, Auditing, Banking and Financial Management. The committee currently meets on monthly basis and as necessary. Its responsibilities

are to:

e Keep underreview the efficiency and effectiveness of internal controls in the Bank;

Keep under review financial information and improve the quality of financial reporting with particular attention to compliance with legal and

reporting requirements;

Receive and consider the Bank’s Annual Budget and recommendto the Board for approval;

Review the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Function and reports received there from;

Review the External Auditors’ Audit scope timetables and approach; their performance and their findings;

Recommend on the appointmentof the external auditors andtheir fees;

Review the Bank’s annualfinancial statements prior to their submission to the Board;

Review the Bank’s Risk ManagementPolicies and Procedures.

Monetary Policy Committee (MPC)

Section 4D of the CBK (amendment) Act 2008 establishes the Monetary Policy Committee. The committee is responsible for formulating monetary

policy and is required to meet at least once in two months. Membersof the committee are appointed by the Minister for Finance for aninitial period

of three years each and may be reappointed for anotherfinal term of three years.

The Committee is currently made up of the following:

dd) The Governor whois also the Chairman-internal member

(2) The Deputy Governor whois the Deputy Chairman-internal member

(3) Permanent Secretary to the Treasury or his representative who shall be non-voting member
(4) Professor T. C. Ryan-external member appointed by Minister for Finance

(5) Dr. Rose W. Ngugi-external member appointed by Minister for Finance

(6) Mts. Sheila S.M.R. M’Mbijjewe-external member appointed by Minister for Finance
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(7) Mr. Wycliffe Mukulu-external member appointed by Minister for Finance

(8) Mtr. Charles Koori- internal member appointed by Governor

(9) Mr. John K. Birech-internal member appointed by Governor

The Board of Directors has two sub committees with specific responsibilities and the chairpersons of these sub-committees submit regular reports to

the Board through the Secretariat. The committees and their respective responsibilities are as follows:

Human Resources Committee

The Committee is currently chaired by Ms Agnes Wanjiru and membership includes three other Non-Executive Directors with the Governor and the

Deputy Governor in attendance. The Committee meets regularly as and when needarises to review human resource policies and make suitable

recommendations to the Board.

ManagementStructure

The Central Bank’s Senior Management team is made up of the Governor, the Deputy Governor and the heads of the Bank’s various departments as

indicated above. The positions of Governor and Deputy Governor are set out in the CBK Act Cap 491 of the Laws of Kenya. The Senior

Management meets regularly to review the overall performance of the Bank.

There are various other Management Committees, which advise the Governor on specific issues in order to enable him to discharge his

responsibilities as the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank.

Directors’ Emoluments and Loans

The remuneration paid to the Directors for services rendered during the financial year 2008/2009 is disclosed in note 28 (iv) of the financial

statements. The Non Executive Directors are paid a monthly retainer fee and a sitting allowance for every meeting attended. There were no loans to

Non-Executive Directors during the year while Executive Directors are paid a monthly salary and are eligible for the staff loans.

Code of Ethics

The Bank is committed to the highest standards of integrity, behaviour and ethics. A formal code of ethics for all employees has been approved by

the Board and is fully implemented. All employees of the Bank are expected to avoid activities and financial interests, which could give rise to

conflict of interest with their responsibilities in the Bank. Strict rules of conduct apply to the entire Bank’s staff underthe staff rules and regulations.

Internal Controls

The management of the Bank has put in place a series of internal control mechanisms to ensure the reporting of complete and accurate accounting

information. Procurement of goods andservicesis strictly done in accordance with the Public Procurement & Disposal Act, 2005. In all operational

areas of the Bank, workflows have been structured in a mannerthat allows adequate segregation of duties.

Authorizations

All the expenditure of the Bank must be authorized in accordance with a comprehensive set of Bank policies and procedures. There is a budget,

which is approved by the Board before commencementof the financial year. The Board receives regular management accounts comparing actual

outcomesagainst budget as a means of monitoring actual financial performance of the Bank.

Internal Audit

The internal audit function is performed by Internal Audit and Risk Management department which is also responsible for monitoring and providing

advice on the Bank’s risk management framework. All reports of the Internal Audit are available to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Transparency

The Bank publishes an Annual Report, Monthly Economic Review, Weekly Releases, Statistical Bulletin and Bi-annual Monetary Policy Statement

which explains current monetary policy and also provides the expected monetary policy stance. In addition, the Bank issues policy briefs to the

Treasury on both the monetary andfiscal policies. On an annualbasis, the Financial Statements are published in the Kenya Gazette.

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA

Report on the Financial Statements

Wehave audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central Bank of Kenya, as set out below which comprise the balance sheet as at 30

June 2009, and the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary ofsignificant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance whetherthe financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessmentof the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation ofthe financial statements.
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Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the Bank as at 30th June, 2009 and

of the profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the

Central Bank of Kenya Act.

Report on other matters

Wealso report to you, based on our audit, that:

(i) Wehaveobtainedall the information and explanations whichto the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our

audit;

(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank,so far as appears from our examination of those books; and,

(iii) The Bank’s income statement and balance sheet are in agreement with the books of account.

Dated the 30th September, 2009.

INCOME STATEMENTFOR THE YEAR ENDED30TH JUNE,2009

 

2009 2008

Note KSh. million KSh. million

Interest income 2 8,852 12,108

Interest expense 3 (432) 1,716

Net interest income 8,420 10,392

Fee and commission income 4 3,005 3,156

Foreign exchange gain 5 13,462 54

Other operating income 6 4,849 421

Operating income 29,736 14,023

Operating expenses 7 6,507 5,028

Profit for the year 23,229 8,995

BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE,2009

2009 2008

ASSETS Note KSh. million KSh.million

Balances due from banking institutions and gold holdings 8 246,734 223,486

International Monetary Fund 9 914 206

Items in the course of collection 10 1,430 2,885

Advances to Banks ll 15,011 8,542

Loans and advances 12 8,317 3,460

Otherassets 13 2,870 1,241

Retirement benefit asset 14 1,425 55

Property and equipment 15 1,034 568

Prepaid operating lease rentals 16 275 278

Intangible assets 17 378 18

Due from Government of Kenya 18 33,329 34,439

TOTAL ASSETS 311,717 275,178

LIABILITIES

Currency in circulation 19 108,042 99,750

Deposits 20 125,637 131,141

International Monetary Fund 9 37,448 19,697

Amounts repayable under repurchase agreements 21 - 1,807

Otherliabilities 22 1,488 4,463

Provisions 23 97 66

TOTALLIABILITIES 272,712 256,924

EQUITY AND RESERVES

Share capital 24 5,000 1,500

General reserve fund 25 26,805 12,754

Proposed dividend 26 7,200 4.000

TOTAL EQUITY AND RESERVES 39.005 18,254

TOTALLIABILITIES AND EQUITY 311,717 275,178

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on the 24th September, 2009 and signed onits behalf by:

NJUGUNA NDUNG’U WILLIAM O. OGARA

Governor Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED30TH JUNE,2009

Year ended 30 June 2008

Balanceatstart of the year
Profit for the year

Proposed dividends

Balance at end of the year

Year ended 30 June 2009

Opening balance as previously stated
Prior year adjustment*

Restated opening balance

Additional capital paid during the year

2008 dividends paid

Profit for the year

Proposed dividend

Balance at end of the year

*The prior year adjustmentrelates to a change in policy on recognition of bank notes printing expenses as explained in Note La (iv).

Share capital

KSh. million

 

General

reservefund

KSh. million

7,789
8,995?

(4,000)

12.34

12,754
1.522

14,276
(3,500)

23,229
(7.200)

26,805

Proposed

dividend

KSh. million

 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2009

Operating activities

Net cash (absorbed)/generated by operating activities

Investing activities

Receipts of government loan

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Proceeds on International Monetary Fund -SDR accounts

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities

Financing activities

Dividendspaid

Currency in circulation

Net cash from financingactivities

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at start ofyear
Exchangerate effects

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Note

27 (a)

27 (b)

2009

KSh. million

14,161ane

1,110
(697)
(388)

10
(708)

673

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE,2009

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

(a) Basis of preparation

@ Preparation

Total

KSh. million

9.259
8,995

18,254

18,254
1,522

19,776

(4,000)
23,229

32,005

2008

KSh.million

39,160EE

1,110
(120)

81

(201)

870

9.95 |

9.95 — |
49,981
175,265

54

225,300

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with and comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The financial statements are presented in millions of Kenya Shillings (KShs million) and are prepared underthe historical cost

convention except for measurementat fair value of certain investments.

(ii) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and

interpretations of those Standards.

Gii) Form of presentation

In exceptional circumstances, as allowed by Section 36 of the Act, the Bank may act as the “lender oflast resort” to financial

institutions in difficulty in order to prevent a loss of confidence spreading through the financial system as a whole. In some

cases, confidence can best be sustained if the Bank’s support is disclosed only when the conditions giving rise to potential
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

instability in the economy have improved. Although the financial effects of such operations are included in the financial

statements of the Bank, these statements may not explicitly identify such support.

Changesin accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:

Bank notes printing expenses for each denomination which include ordering,printing, freight, insurance and handling costs are

initially deferred. Based on the currency issued into circulation, the respective proportional actual costs incurred are released to

the income statement from the deferred costs account over the useful period (life span) of each bank note denomination. The

deferred amountis recognised as prepayment and represents un-issued bank notes (currency) stock. Previously the costs were

expensed upon delivery of currency stock.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Effective in 2008

The following amendments and interpretation standard are mandatory though notrelevant to the Bank. The effective date of

the amendments was 1 July 2008.

e Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments

Disclosures - Reclassification of Financial Assets. The amendments allow entities to reclassify certain financial assets

out of held-for-trading if they are no longer held for the purpose of being sold or repurchased in the near term.

Financial assets that would beeligible for classification as loans and receivables (i.e. those assets which, apart from not

being held with the intent of sale in the near term, have fixed or determinable payments, are not quoted in an active

market and contain no features which could cause the holder not to recover substantially all of its initial investment

except through credit deterioration) may be transferred from “Held-for-trading’ to “Loans and receivables’, if the entity

has the intention andthe ability to hold them for the foreseeable future.

Financial assets that are not eligible for classification as loans and receivables may be transferred from “Held-for-

trading’ to ‘Available-for-sale’ or to “‘Held-to-maturity’, only in rare circumstances. The amendment requires detailed

disclosures relating to such reclassifications. The effective date of the amendment was | July 2008 andreclassifications

before that date are not permitted.

The Bank did not make use of these amendments to reclassify any ofits financial instruments between the effective date of

these amendments whichis 1 July 2008 and 30 June 2009.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on orafter 1

January 2008 butare not relevant to the Bank’s operations:

e IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions - This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an

employee is granted rights to an entity’s equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the

entity buys the instruments from anotherparty, or the shareholders provide the equity instruments needed.

e IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes — The IFRIC issued IFRIC 13 in June 2007. This interpretation requires

customerloyalty credits to be accounted for as a separate componentof the sales transaction in which they are granted.

A portion of the fair value of the consideration receivedis allocated to award credits.

e IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction - IFRIC

Interpretation 14 provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme

that can be recognised as an asset under IAS1.

e IFRIC 12, Service Concession Agreements -The IFRIC was issued in November 2006. This interpretation applies to

service concession operators and explains how to account for the obligations undertaken and rights received in service

concession arrangements.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that have been issued and are not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet

effective for the Bank's operations and which the Bank hasnot early adopted:

IFRS 2, Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations(effective from 1 January 2009).

The Standard restricts the definition of "vesting condition" to a condition that includes an explicit or implicit requirement to

provide services. Any other conditions are non-vesting conditions, which have to be taken into account to determine the fair

value of the equity instruments granted. In the case that the award does notvest as the result of a failure to meet a non-vesting

condition that is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty, this must be accountedfor as a cancellation.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective I July 2009) - The
revised standards were issued in January 2008 and becomeeffective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009. IFRS

3 introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring after this date that will impact the

amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. IAS 27

requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended

standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other
consequential amendments were made to IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, IAS 12 Income Taxes, IAS 21, The Effects of

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, IAS 28 Investment in Associates and IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures. The changes by

IFRS 3 and IAS 27 will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with minority interests.

IFRS 8, Operating Segments. This standard requires disclosure of information about the Bank's operating segments and

replaced the requirement to determine primary (business) and secondary (geographical) reporting segments of the Bank. IFRS

replaces IAS 14, Segment Reporting ([AS 14) uponeffective date.
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. IAS 1, (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements. The standard replaces IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

(revised in 2003) as amended in 2005. The revised IAS 1 wasissued in September 2007 and is effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2009 with early application permitted. The Standard separates owner and non-owner changesin

equity. The statement of changes in equity will include only details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in

equity presented as a single line. In addition, the Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income, which presents

income and expense items recognisedin profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised income and expense,either in

one single statement, or in two linked statements.

. IAS 23, Borrowing Costs (effective from 1 January 2009)-The IASB issued an amendment to IAS 23 in April 2007. The

revised IAS 23 requires capitalisation of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or

production of a qualifying asset.

. IAS 32, Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable

Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation -These amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 were issued in February

2008 and become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The revisions provide a limited scope

exception for puttable instruments to be classified as equity if they fulfil a numberof specified features.

. IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items - These amendments to IAS 39 were

issued in August 2008 and become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The amendmentaddressesthe

designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion in particular

situations. It clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair value changes or cash flow variability of a

financial instrument as hedged item.

. IFRIC 15, Agreementfor the Construction of Real Estate-IFRIC 15 wasissued in July 2008 and becomeseffective for financial

years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively. It clarifies when and how revenue

and related expenses from the sale of a real estate unit should be recognised if an agreement between a developer and a buyeris

reached before the construction of the real estate is completed. Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance on how to
determine whether an agreementis within the scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18.

. IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation - IFRIC 16 wasissued in July 2008 and becomeseffective for

financial years beginning on or after 1 October 2008. The interpretation is to be applied prospectively. IFRIC 16 provides

guidance on the accounting for a hedge of a net investment. As such it provides guidance on identifying the foreign currency

risks that qualify for hedge accounting in the hedge of a net investment, where within the group the hedging instruments can be

held in the hedge of a net investment and how an entity should determine the amountofforeign currency gain orloss, relating to

both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposal of the net investment.

. IFRIC 17, Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners-effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009-This

interpretation provides guidance on accounting for arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash assets to shareholders

either as a distribution of reservesor as dividends.

. IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009-This interpretation

provides guidance on how to account for items of property, plant and equipment received from customers, or cash that is

received and used to acquire or construct specific assets. This interpretation only applies to such assets that are used to connect

the customerto a network orto provide ongoing access to a supply of goodsor servicesorboth.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards will have no material effect on the financial statements of the Bank.

(vii) Improvements to IFRS’s

In May 2008, the International Accounting Standards Board issuedits first omnibus of amendmentsto its standards, primarily with

a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

The Bank has not yet adopted the following amendments and anticipates that these changes will have no material effect on the
financial statements.

= IFRS7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removal of the reference to ‘total interest income’ as a componentoffinance costs.

= JAS 8, Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Clarification that only implementation guidance thatis

an integral part of an IFRS is mandatory whenselecting accounting policies.

=" JAS 10, Events after the Reporting Period: Clarification that dividends declared after the end of the reporting period are not

obligations.

= IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Items of property, plant and equipmentheld for rental, are transferred to inventory when

the rental ceases and they are held for sale.

= TAS18, Revenue: Replacementofthe term “direct costs’ with ‘transaction costs’ as defined in IAS 39.

= JAS 19, Employee Benefits: Revised the definition of ‘past service costs’, ‘return on plan assets’ and ‘short term’ and ‘other long-

term’ employee benefits. Amendmentsto plans that result in a reduction in benefits related to future services are accounted for as

curtailment. Deleted the reference to the recognition of contingentliabilities to ensure consistency with IAS 37.

= TAS20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of GovernmentAssistance.

= JAS38, Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising and promotionalactivities is recognised as an expense when the company

either has the right to access the goodsor has receivedthe service.

= JAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Changes in circumstances relating to derivatives are not

reclassifications and therefore may be either removed from,or includedin, the ‘fair value throughprofit or loss’ classification after

initial recognition. Removed the reference in IAS 39 to a ‘segment’ when determining whether an instrument qualifies as a hedge.

Require the use of the revised effective interest rate when remeasuring a debt instrument on the cessation of fair value hedge

accounting.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Significant accounting judgement and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptionsthat affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the directors’ best

knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying

assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in whichthe estimate is

revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periodsif the revision affects both current and

future periods.

The mostsignificant use ofjudgement and estimates are as follows:

@ Impairmentlosses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an allowance for impairment should be

recognised in the income statement. In particular, judgement by the directors is required in the estimation of the amount and

timing of future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on the assumptions

about a numberoffactors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changesin the allowance.

In addition to specific allowances against individual significant loans and advances, the Bank makesa collective impairment

allowance against exposures which, although not specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of

default than when originally granted. This takes into consideration such factors as any deterioration in industry, technological

obsolescence, as well as identified structural weaknessesor deterioration in cash flows.

(ii) Pensions

The actuarial valuation cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation

involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and

future pension increases. Due to the long nature ofthese plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. See note 14 for

assumptions used.

(iii) Property, equipment and intangible assets

Critical estimates are made by the management in determining depreciation and amortisation rates for property, equipment and

intangible assets. The rates used are set out in the accounting policy (g) and (h) below.

(iv) Usefullife of currency

Useful lives of the various bank notes denominations are currently estimated as follows:

KSh. 1,000 2 years

KSh. 500 2 years

KSh. 200 2 years

The useful life for all other denominations is estimated at 1 year.

Revenuerecognition

Incomeis recognised in the period in whichit is earned. Incomeis not accruedif its recoverability is considered doubtful.

@ Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statementforall interest bearing instruments on an accrual basis

using the effective yield method based on the actual purchase price. Interest income includes coupons earned on fixed income

investment and trading securities and accrued discount and premium ontreasury bills and other discounted instruments.

(ii) Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income, which arise from financial services provided by the Bank, are recognised when the

corresponding services are provided.

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Kenya Shillings at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Assets and

liabilities at the balance sheet date which are expressed in foreign currencies are translated into Kenya Shillingsat rates ruling at that date.

The resulting differences from conversion and translation are dealt with in the income statementin the year in which theyarise.

Non-monetaty items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchangerates as at the

dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measuredat fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchangerates at

the date when the fair value was determined.

Currencyprinting and minting expenses

Notes printing and coins minting expenses which include ordering, printing, minting, freight, insurance and handling costs are

expensed upon issuance of currency into circulation.

Employee benefits

@ Retirement benefits

The Bank’s employees are eligible for retirement benefits under a defined benefit plan provided through a separate fund

scheme administered by Trustees and funded by the Bank. Kenya School of Monetary Studies (KSMS), Central Bank of

Kenya Staff Pension Scheme, Deposit Protection Fund Board, and other related parties, reimburses the Bank the costs of

contributionsrelating to staff seconded to them by the Bank.
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(g)

(h)

i)

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the projected unit method. The present value

ofthe defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds

that have terms to maturity approximating to the termsofthe related pensionliability.

The Bank’snet obligation in respect to the plan is calculated by estimating the amountof future benefits that employees have

earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value and

the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the Projected Unit

Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments(the effects of differences between the previous actuarial assumptions

and what actually occurred), as well as the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised

as income or expense when the net cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous report year

exceed 10% ofthe higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value ofplan assets as at that date. These gains or losses are

recognised over the expected average remaining workinglives of the employeesparticipating in the plan.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense on straightline basis over the average period until the benefits become vested.If the

benefits vest immediately, the past service cost is recognised immediately. Any net defined benefit surplusis limited to the benefit

that is available to the Bank.

Where the calculation results in a benefit to the Bank, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised

actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future

contributions to the plan. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the income statement over the remaining working lives of

the employeesparticipating in the scheme.

The Bank also makes contributions to a statutory pension scheme, the National Social Security Fund (NSSF). Contributionsto the

scheme are determined by local statute and are shared between the employer and employee.

Gi Other employee benefits

The Bank provides free medical treatmentto staff, spouse and up to a maximum offour children below the age of 23 years. The

related expenses are recognised once incurred.

The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued leave entitlement at the balance sheet date is recognised as an expense

accrual.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is

computed on the straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets at the followingrates:

Building improvements over the estimated future lives which range from ten to twenty-five years

Motor vehicles, furniture and equipmentover periods ranging from twoto five years

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use to support operation is classified as Work—in—Progress (WIP) and stated

at cost until construction or developmentis complete, at which timeit is reclassified as property, plant and equipmentin use.

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the current economic benefits and meet the recognitioncriteria.

Expenditure incurred to replace a componentofitem of property, plant and equipmentis accounted for separately and capitalized

while the major replaced componentis derecognised.

All other expenditure items which do not meet recognition criteria are recognised in the income statement as expenses as they are
incurred.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or

disposal. Any loss or gain on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

carrying amountofthe asset) is recognised in other operating income in the income statementin the yearthe asset is derecognised

Theassets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at the each financial year

end. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amountis the higher of the asset’s fair value (less costs to sell) and value in use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include the value of computer software. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at

cost. Followinginitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment

loss.

Intangible assets that are being developed for future use to support operations are classified as Work —in — Progress (WIP) and stated

at cost until developmentis complete, at which time they are reclassified as Intangible assets.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite and are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period

with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives

is recognised in the income statement.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to the residual values over the

estimated useful life as follows:

Computer software over periods ranging from twoto five years

Impairmentof non-financial assets

Impairment of assets is assessed at each balance sheet date or more frequently where any events or changes in circumstances dictate
for indications of impairment. If significant indications are present, these assets are subject to an impairment review by estimating the
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recoverable amount. An impairmentloss is charged to income statement when the carrying amountof an asset exceeds the recoverable

amount.

Previously recognised impairment loss of related asset may be reversed in part or in full when a change in circumstances leads to an

increase of the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset will only be increased up to the amountthat it would have been had

the original impairment not been recognised. For the purpose of measuring and accounting for impairmentloss; either fair value or value

in use of an asset is compared with carrying amount.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset of one entity and a financialliability or equity instrument of

anotherentity.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Date of recognition

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, which is the date that the Bank commits to purchase orsell the

asset.

Recognition andinitial measurement

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were

acquired and their characteristics. All financial instruments are measuredinitially at their fair value plus, in the case of financial

assets and financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or
issue.

Classification and measurement

The Bank classifiesits financial assets in the following categories: loans and advances and investments that are held to

maturity. The Bank determinesthe classification of its investmentsat initial recognition.

(1) Loans, advancesandreceivables

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market. They arise when the Bank provides moneyorservices directly to counterparty with no intention of trading

the receivable. The Bank hasclassified the following financial assets as loans and receivables originated by the entity:

loans and advances, amounts due from the Government, other assets, International Monetary Fund (IMF)related assets

and cash and cash equivalents. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.

As the lender of last resort, the Bank may grant loans or advances for fixed periods not exceeding six months to

commercial banks that pledge Governmentsecurities specified by the Bank.In its capacity as the fiscal agent and banker

to the Government of Kenya (Gok), the Bank may make direct advances to the Governmentfor the purpose of offsetting

fluctuations between receipts from the budgeted revenue and the payments of the Government. The total amount of

advances to the Government outstanding shall not exceed five percent of the gross recurrent revenue of the Government

as shown in the Appropriation Accounts for the latest year for which those financial statements have been audited by the

Controller and Auditor-General.

The Bank also operates a staff loans scheme for its employees for the provision offacilities such as house andcar loans.

The Bank determines the terms and conditions for granting of the above loans with reference to the prevailing market

interest rates and may determine different rates for different classes of transactions and maturities.

(2) Held to maturity

Investments classified as held to maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and

fixed maturities that the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-

maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less

allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The amortization is included in “Interest income’ in the

income statement. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognised in the income statementline
‘Impairmentlosses on financial investments’. Were the Bank to sell other than an insignificant amount of such assets, the

entire category would be reclassified as available for sale. The Bank currently classifies term deposits, Government

securities, repurchase and reverse purchase instruments as held to maturity.

(3) Financialliabilities

Financialliabilities are measured at amortised cost except for financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and

loss. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less, in the caseofliabilities carried at amortised cost (including

due to banks, due to International Monetary Fund other deposits and other funds borrowed), transaction costs incurred and

any difference between the proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption amount is recognised in the income

statementas interest expense over the period to maturity using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities which

are repayable on demand are recorded at nominal value. Deposits represent reserve deposits of depository institutions’

participants and current accounts of the Bank. The Bank hasclassified the following financial instruments as financial

liabilities: currency in circulation, deposits, IMF related liabilities and otherliabilities.

(4) Financial assets atfair value through income statement: Heldfor Trading

A financialasset is classified in this category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term orif

so designated by management. Derivatives are classified as held at fair value through income statement. The Bank has

classified the Reserve Asset Management Programme (RAMP)financial instruments as held for trading.
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(k)

C)

(iv) Derecognition

Financial assets are de-recognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the

Bank hastransferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an

existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.

The gains and losses on investments held to maturity and loans and receivables are recognized in the income statement when

the investments are derecognized.

(v) Gainsandlosses on subsequent measurement

Gains and losses on amortisation of premiumsor discounts of financial instruments carried at amortised cost are recognised in

the income statementofthe period in which they arise. Gains and losses due to impairmentare recognised as stated in the

paragraph dealing with impairment.

(vi) Offsetting

Financial assets and financialliabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the balance sheet where there is a legally

enforceable right to set off the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.

(vii) Impairmentof financial assets

Loansare stated at outstanding amountless provision for impairment.

A review for impairmentis carried out at each financial year-end. A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amountis greater

than its estimated recoverable amount.

Specific provisions for loan impairment are made in respect of advances. The provisions are based on periodic evaluations of

advances and take account of past loss experience, economic conditions and the estimated value of any underlying collateral,

and are charged to the income statement.

If there is objective evidence that an impairmentloss on assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amountof the

loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

(excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate (which is the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amountof the asset is reduced

through use of an allowance account. The amountofthe loss is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequentperiod, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event

occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairmentloss is reversed, to the extent that the

carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment

loss is recognized in the income statement.

Amounts Repayable under Repurchase Agreements (REPOs)

REPOis an arrangement involving the sale for cash, of security at a specified price with a commitment to repurchase the same or

similar securities at a fixed price either at a specific future date or at maturity.

For monetary purposes(liquidity management), the Bank from time to time mops up money from the market (REPO) or injects money

into the economy (Reverse REPO). The Bank engages in the above with commercial banksonly.

When the Bank mops money from commercial banks, it creates a liability in its books and secures this borrowing (liability) by

assigning part of the Government loan to the commercial banks it has mopped from. The Bank freezes the money mopped and pays

interest at market rates on the money. The money mopped stays until maturity (7 to 91 days).

Similarly the Bank also lends money to commercial banks (reverse repo). The Bank creates an asset in its books and takes a security

from the borrowing bank usually in form of Treasury Bills or Bonds. The Bank earns interest from the borrowing commercial bank on

this lending. The injected money stays with the borrowing bank until maturity (1 to 7 days).

qa The Bank treats REPOsas collateralized loans for accounting purposes. In this case, a REPO is recorded as a secured advance

and is shown separately as REPO Agreement.

(ii) REPQOs continue to be recognised in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with policies for non-trading

investment.

(iii) The difference between sales and repurchaseprice is treated as interest expenditure and is recognised in the income statement

The Bank also accepts deposits from commercial banks on a voluntary basis at market terms for an agreed period. This is a

new monetary instrument that the Bank uses in addition to REPO andis similar to REPO onlythatit is not secured.

Currencyin circulation

Currency issued by the Bank represents a claim on the Bank in favour of the holder. The liability for currency in circulation is

recorded at face value in these financial statements. Currency in circulation represents the face value of notes and coins in circulation.

Notes and coins held by the Bank as cash in main vault, intermediary vault, and cashier at the end of financial year are netted off

against the liability for notes and coins in circulation because they do not represent currency in circulation.
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(m) Deposits

Deposits are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable receipts that are not quoted in an active market. They arise

when the Bank receives money orservices directly from counterparty with no intention of trading the payable. Deposits held are

carried at cost with interest income accruing on an effective interest rate basis.

Cash Ratio Deposits are taken to fund certain activities of the Bank in accordance with the Banking Act and are interest free. Cash

Ratio Reserves is a monetary policy instrument used to manage liquidity. The deposits earn no interest to commercial banks and the

Bank does not trade on these deposits in any way. Subsequent to year end, the deposits are currently computed at 4.5% of each

commercial bank’s deposits it has taken from the public; previously the rate was 5%. Each commercial bank is required to deposit the

applicable amountat the Bank and the computation is done on monthly basis.

(n) Dividends payable

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared. Proposed dividends are disclosed as a separate

component of equity until they are declared.

(o) Provisions

Provisions ate recognised when the Bank hasa present obligation / (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable

that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation anda reliable estimate can be made

of the amountof the obligation.

The calculated monetary liability for employees’ accrued annual leave entitlement at the balance sheet date is recognised as an

expense accrual.

(p) Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangementis, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an

assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement

conveysa right to use the asset.

@ Bank asa lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Bank substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are

capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum

lease payments and included in ‘Property and equipment’ with the corresponding liability to the lessor included in ‘Other

liabilities.” Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction ofthe leaseliability so as to achieve a

constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against income in

‘Interest and similar expense.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,if there is

no reasonable certainty that the Bank will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Operating lease payments are not

recognised in the balance sheet. Any rentals payable are accounted for on straight-line basis over the lease term and included
in ‘Other operating expenses’.

Gi Bank asa lessor

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as

operating leases. The Bank leases outall of its properties as operating leases, thus generating rental income. Initial direct

costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amountof the leased asset and recognised overthe lease

term on the samebasis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

(q@) Otherassets

Other assets are stated at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less allowance for

impairment. Dueto their short term nature, the nominal value or cost are considered to approximate the fair value and as such stated at

cost less any impairmentloss.

(r) Otherliabilities

Otherliabilities are stated at their nominal value/cost, which approximates fair value due to the short term nature thereof.

(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash balances, bank deposits, current accounts, gold holding, government securities with

maturity of up to 3 months from the date of issue.

@ Commitments on behalf of Treasury

Commitments on behalf of Treasury arising from the issue of Treasury bills and Treasury bondsare not included in these financial

statements as the Bank is involved in such transactions only as an agent.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE,2009

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

INTEREST INCOME

Cash and cash equivalents ( Note 2a) 2009 2008

Held to maturity investments (Note 2b) 6,889 10,241

Loansand advances (Note 2c) 1,821 1,797

Held for trading investments (Note 2d) 121 :

8,852 12,108
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2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

2(a) Interest income from cash and cash equivalents

Interest on Sterling Pound deposits 3 6
Interest on US Dollar deposits 5 48

Interest on Euro deposits 9 10

Income from IMF 4 _6

21 20

2(b) Interest income from held to maturity investments

Interest on Sterling Pound term deposits 3,436 5,143

Interest on US Dollar term deposits 2,060 4,032

Interest on Euro term deposits 1,393 1,066

6,889 10,241

The weighted average interest rates for term deposits were
US Dollar 1.72% 4.75%

UKSterling Pounds 2.48% 5.90%

Euro 2.58% 4.44%

2(c) Interest income from loans and advances

Interest on loan due from Government (Note 18) 1,025 1,061

Interest on Governmentoverdraft 466 291

Interest on staff loans 75 73

Interest on reverse REPOs 70 107

Interest on local commercial banks overnight 45 68

loans

Interest on foreign commercial banks overnight 26 120

loans

Otherinterest income 114 77
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2(d) Interest income from held for trading investments

Interest income - World Bank RAMP 1 |
— 1

During the year, the Bank engaged the services of Reserve Asset Management Programme (RAMP) whichis the investment arm of the

World Bank to assist in building capacity in foreign reserves management. The Bank hasavailed US $ 200 million for the Programme.

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

2(e) Additional disclosure on income by source

Foreign investments earnings 7,058 10,431

Local investments earnings 1,719 1,604

Otherinterest earnings 75 73

8,852 12,108

3 INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on monetary policy issues/ REPOs 334 1,640

Interest paid to IMF 98 —i6

432 L716

4 COMMISSION AND FEES INCOME

Commission on sale of Government securities 3,000 3,150

Poverty Reduction and Growth Facility (PRGF)

(IMF-GoK) Commission 5 4

Others : 2

3,005 3,156

The Bank earns a commission of 1.5% from the Government for its agency role in the issuance of Treasury bills and bonds. The
commission income is limited to KShs 3 billion as per an agreement between the Bank and Treasury. In addition, the Bank earns

commissions from other debt instruments issued to meet funding requirements of State Corporations.

5 FOREIGN EXCHANGEGAIN/(LOSS)

Foreign exchange dealing profit (Note 5a) 1,470 1,319

Foreign exchange translation gain/(loss) (Note 5b) 11,992 (1,265)

13,462 54

5(a) Foreign exchange dealing profit
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Gainsonsale of foreign exchange to Government

Foreign exchange dealing profit on commercial banks

Foreign exchange translation (loss)/gain

Revaluation gain/(loss) on current accounts

Revaluation gain/(loss) on foreign deposits

Revaluation loss on IMF accounts

Others

Exchangerates

USDollar

GBP

Euro

Foreign Currency Investment mix

US Dollar

GBPSterling Pound

Euro

2009

KShs million

1,227
243

 

KShs

77.05

128.83

108.90

2009

42%

35%

23%

100%

3107

2008

KShs million

1,230
89

1,319=_-

9
(532)
(771)
29

(1,265)

KShs

64.60

128.77

101.99

2008

39%
57%
1%
100%

The foreign currency investment mix is determined by the Investment Committee and is revised from time to time in line with the Bank’s
monetary objectives.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Recovery on impaired loan (Note 6a)

Actuarial gain on retirement benefit obligations

KSMShospitality services

Miscellaneous income

KSMStuition fees and other charges

Rent received

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment

Recovery on impaired loan

10% on sale of Grand Regency Hotel

90% on sale of Grand Regency Hotel

Receipt from the Receiver Manager

Retirement benefits of employees of the Hotel

2009

KShs million

3,141
1,370
185
90
37
16
10

4,849

US$
Million

4.5

40.5

45

2008

KShs million

KShs

Million

277
2,671
297

104

3,141

The recovery on impaired loan relates to write back of provisions for Exchange Bank Limited loan. In 1992, during a period of severe
shortage of foreign currency in Kenya, Exchange Bank sold foreign currency amounting to US$ 210 million to the Bank. Exchange Bank

was credited with KShs 13.5 billion being the Kenya shilling equivalent but did not deliver the foreign currency in the Bank’s overseas

correspondent accounts as required to. The amount of KShs 13.5 billion owing from Exchange Bank waseventually off set by repayments

and against deposits held at the Bank and the outstanding balance of about KShs4.5 billion was secured by way of a legal charge on L.R.
No. 209/9514 (belonging to Uhuru Highway Development Limited and trading as Grand Regency Hotel) valued KShs 2.5 billion. The

Hotel was sold in 2008 for US $ 45 million (KShs 3.1 billion) leaving an irrecoverable balance of KShs 1.5 billion that was already fully

providedfor and has now, with the sale of the hotel, been extinguished from the booksofthe Bank.

2009 2008

KShs million KShs million

OPERATING EXPENSES

Staff costs (Note 7a) 3,260 3,261

Currency expenses (Note 7b) 1,260 403

Property maintenance expenses (Note 7c) 660 519

Depreciation on property and equipment (Note 15) 231 144

Amortisation on intangible assets (Note 17) 28 31

Other expenses (Note 7d) 1,057 659

Auditors’ remuneration 4 4

Banking expenses 4 4

Operating lease rentals 3 3
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2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

Wa) Staff costs

Personnel emoluments 2,925 3,010

Medical benefit 135 115

Staff training and developmentcosts 188 123

Directors’ expenses 12 __13

3,260 3,261

7b) Currency expenses

Notes production 1,108 330

Coins production 140 59

Notes issue 7 10
Coinsissue 5 4

1,260 403

7(c) Property maintenance expenses

Upkeep of property 234 241

Security of premises 193 154

Property renovation 121 30

Electricity 71 46

Others 41 48

660 519

7d) Other expenses

Transport and travelling 125 98

Office expenses 126 107

Postal service expenses 88 93

Legal and professionalfees 105 8

Other administrative expenses 613 353

1,057 659

8 BALANCES DUE FROM BANKINGINSTITUTIONS AND GOLD HOLDINGS

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

Cash and cash equivalents ( Note 8a) 8,975 10,318

Held for trading investments (Note 8b) 15,449 -

Held to maturity investments (Note 8c) 222,276 213,140

Gold holdings 34 28

246,734 223,486

8(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Special project accounts 4,695 4.451

Current account 2,598 4,423

Domestic forex currency cheque clearing 1,676 1,438

Forex travellers cheques 6 6

8,975 10318

8(b) Held for trading

US Dollar deposits 925 -

Fixed income securities 14,469 -
Accrued interest 55 -

15,449 :

8(c) Held to maturity investments

Term deposits (Note 8 c(i)) 221,824 210,866

Accrued interest on term deposits 452 2.274

222,276 213,140

8 c(i) Term deposits

Dollar deposits 90,534 106,367

Sterling Pound deposits 80,649 68,799

Euro deposits 50,641 35,700

221,824 210,866
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9. INTERNATIONAL MONETARYFUND

Kenya has been a memberof the International Monetary Fund (IMF) since 1966. The Bank is the designated depository for the IMF’s
holdings of Kenya’s currency. IMF currency holdings are held in the No. 1 and No 2 Accounts, which are deposit accounts of the IMF with

the Bank.

2009 2008
SDR KShs SDR’ KShs

Million Million Million Million

Assets

IMF balances( SDR asset account) 8 914 2 206

Liabilities

International Monetary Fund Account No.1 20 3,128 20 2,134

International Monetary Fund Account No.2 - 3 - -

International Monetary Fund — PRGF Account
281 33,599 122 16,510

International Monetary Fund loans to Government of Kenya

_6 718 10 1,053

307 37,448 152 19,697

Security at 30 June 238 28,079 246 24,015

 

 

Borrowings from and repayments to the IMF are denominated in Special Drawing Rights (SDRs). The SDR balances in IMF accounts are translated

into KShs and any unrealized gains or losses are accounted for in accordance with accounting policy on foreign currencies.

On a custodial basis, the Bank holds a non-negotiable, non-interest bearing and encashable on demand security issued by the Treasury in favour of
the IMF inits capacity as the IMF’s depository

Kenya's Quota in IMF and SDRsallocations amounting to SDR 271.4 million and SDR 36.9 million respectively, are accounted for in the books of

the Government of Kenya.

10 ITEMSIN THE COURSE OF COLLECTION 2009 2008

KShs million KShs million

Itemsin the course of collection 1,430 2,885

The balance represents values of clearing instruments which are held by the Bank while awaiting clearing by respective

 

commercial banks.

il ADVANCESTO BANKS

REPO Treasury Bills 9,552 -

REPOTreasury Bonds 5,437 7,042

Treasury Bonds Discounted 10 1,467

Treasury Bills Discounted 9 -
Accruedinterest 3 33

15,011 8.542

The Bank lends money to commercial banks through reverse Repo for a short duration of 7 days only. These advances are secured

against governmentsecurities of any maturity. The discounted governmentsecurities held are ofvarying maturities.

  

12 LOANS AND ADVANCES 2009 2008

KShs million KShs million

Irrecoverable amount from banks underliquidation 3,767 8,337

Government overdraft account (see below and Note 28) 5,124 -

Loan from IMFto the Government of Kenya (Note 28) 718 1,053

Advances to employees
Salary advance 178 176

Car loans 379 350

Housing scheme 1,746 1,736

Development loan 189 160

12,101 11,812
Provision for loan impairment (banks & staff) (3,784) (8,352)

Net advancesas at 30 June 8,317 3,460

Movementin the loan impairment allowance is as follows:

At start of the year (8,352) (8,281)

Additional impairment allowance made during the year (63) (78)

Irrecoverable amounton sale of the Hotel 1,490 -

Recoveries on sale of the Hotel in the year (Note 6a) 3,141 -

Other recoveries - 7 

At end of the year (3,784) (8,352)
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13

14

Section 46(3) of the Central Bank of Kenya Act sets the limit of the Government of Kenya’s overdraft facility at 5% of the Gross
Recurrent Revenue as reported in the latest audited financial statements. The limit stands at KShs 16,882,643,732 based on the

Government financial statements for 2006/2007, which are the latest audited financial statements at the date of approval of these

financial statements. The limit for the previous year was KShs 14,818,512,441 based on the Governmentfinancial statements for

2005/2006.

OTHER ASSETS 2009 2008

KShs million KShs million

Prepayments 972 966

Deferred currency expenses 1,580 -

Advances 318 275

2,870 1241

The policy of the Bank is to recognise currency notes expenses upon issuing out of currency notes for circulation. The expense is

amortised overthe lifespan of the respective bank notes as follows:

Notes Depreciation

KShs 50 and KShs 100 Over one year on a prorata basis

KShs 200, 500 and 1,000 Overtwo years on a prorata basis

In prior years, the policy of the Bank was to recognise currency notes expenses on receipt from the printers. Costs on coins are expensed

upon delivery of the currency stock from the minters.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT ASSET

The Bank’s employeesare eligible for retirement benefits under a defined benefit plan provided through a separate fund. The defined

benefit plan is funded by the Bank and the Deposit Protection Fund Board,a related party. The retirement benefit asset is wholly

recognised in the financial statements of the Bank while the Deposit Protection Fund Board recognises contributionsto the fund asif

it were a defined contribution scheme.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined on the basis of an actuarial review carried out by Alexander Forbes

Financial Servicesas at 30 June.

 

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

Present value of funded obligations 9,582 10,496

Fair value of plan assets (11,678) (12,136)

Present value of net asset (2,096) (1,640)

Unrecognised actuarial gain 671 1,585

Asset in the balance sheet (1.425) (55)

The amounts recognised in the income statementare as follows:

Current service costs 453 532

Interest costs 921 847

Expected return on plan assets (1,085) (955)

Net gains recognised in the year (65) (5)

Adjustment for previous year values (135) -

Past service cost (1,138) :

Total expenses included in operating expenses (1,049) 419

Movements in the net asset recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Netliability at start of period (55) (240)

Net expense recognised in the income statement (1,051) 419

Employer contributions (319) (234)

Netliability at end of period (1,425) (55)

Actual return on plan assets 380 1,679

The principal actuarial assumptionsat the balance sheet date were:

2009 2008

Discountrate (p.a.) 9% 9%

Salary increase (p.a.) T™% ™

Expected return on plan assets (p.a.) 9% 9%

Future pension increases 0% 0%



 

 

 

23rd October, 2009 THE KENYA GAZETTE 3111

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Motor Furniture and

buildings vehicles equipment Total

KShs million KShs million KShs million KShs million

30 June 2009

Cost

At start of year 987 215 3,130 4,332

Additions 1 13 683 697

Disposals - (32) - (32)

At endof the year 988 196 3,813 4.997

Depreciation

At start of the year 945 168 2,651 3,764

Charge for the year 9 39 183 231

Eliminated on disposal - (32) - (32)

At endof the year 954 175 2.834 3,963

Net book value at 30 June 2009 34 —_ —___979 —__1,034

30 June 2008

Cost

At start of year 1,004 184 3,065 4,253

Additions - 54 66 120

Disposals (17) (23) (1) (41)

At endof the year 987 215 3,130 4,332

Depreciation

At start of the year 953 157 2,552 3,662

Charge for the year 9 34 100 143

Eliminated on disposal (17) (23) (1) ____(41)

At end of the year 945 168 2.651 3.764

Net bookvalue at 30 June 2008 —___ —___47 —___479 568

16 PREPAID OPERATING LEASE RENTALS

Operating lease rentals are carried at historical cost less amortisation over the period of the lease. The breakdownis as follows:

Cost

At 30 June

Amortisation

At 1 July

Amortisation for the year

At end of the year

Net carrying value at end of the year

2009
KShsmillion

3 i
o

L
.

a
T2

75

2008
KShs million

3 i
o

|
aa

d
i

o
O

N
o2

7 jo
o

The prepaid operating lease rentals relate to L.R. No. IR 53398 which has a lease term of 99 years. The leasehold land was acquired by

the Bank in 2002 at a cost of KShs 300,000,000. The cost is amortised on the basis of the remaininglife of the lease.

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 July

Additions

At endof the year

Amortisation

At 1 July

Amortisation for the year

At end of the year

Net carrying value at end of the year

Software

KShs

180

37

1 1

162

28

190

M
m

Work-in-

Progress

KShs

35

5 _
—

5 |
—

2009

Total

KShs

The work-in-progress relates to software acquired for the System of Integrated Management Banking and Accounting (SIMBA)project.
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18 DUE FROM GOVERNMENTOF KENYA

At start of the year

Receipts during the year

2009 2008

KShs million KShs million

34,439 35,549

(1,110) (1.110)

33,329 34,439At endof the year

The loan due from the Government of Kenya arose from overdrawn accounts which were converted to a loan with effect from 1 July 1997 after an

amendmentto the Central Bank of Kenya Act.

On 24 July 2007, a deed of guarantee was signed between the Government of Kenya and Central Bank of Kenya in which the Government agreed to
repay KShs 1.11 billion per annum over 32 years at 3% interest per annum. The security held is lien over cash balances, stock, treasury bonds and

such other governmentsecurities as are specified in Section 46(5) of the Central Bank of Kenya Act.

The loan due from the Government of Kenya is categorised as a held-to-maturity investment andis carried at amortized cost. The Directors have

assessed the loan for impairment and the amountof the impairment is measured as the difference between the loan’s carrying amount and the present

value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan’s original effective interest rate of 3% per annum. The assessment has indicated that the
loan is not impaired.

19 CURRENCYIN CIRCULATION 2009

KShs million

Kenyanotes 104,002
Kenya coins 4,034

Commemorative coins 6

108,042

Balanceat the beginning of the year 99,750

Deposits by banks (283,489)

Withdrawals by banks 291,781

Balanceat the end of the year 108,042

2008

KShs million

95,992
3,753
 

Currency in circulation represents the face value of notes and coins in circulation. Notes and coins held by the Bank as cash in main vault,

intermediary vault, and cashier/ teller at the end of financial year have been netted off against the liability for notes and coins in circulation

because they do not represent currency in circulation. Currency notes and coinsare issued in the following denominations:

Notes: 1,000/-, 500/-, 200/= and 50/-.

Coins: 40/=, 20/=, 10/=, 5/=, 2/-, 1/=, /50, /10 and /05.

20 DEPOSITS

Local commercial banks (Note 20 a)

Local banksforex settlement accounts (Note 20 b)

External banks forex settlement accounts

Other public entities and project accounts

Governmentof Kenya(Note 20 c)

20(a) Local commercial banks

Clearing accounts

Cash reserve ratio

Open Market Operations (OMO)deposits

2009

KShs million

51,901
1,297

89
8,181

64,169

2008
KShs million

53,868
1,239

21
8,506

67.507

The cash reserve ratio is a statutory ratio for monetary policy. Commercial Banks and Non-Bank Financial Institutions (NBFI’s) are

required to hold at the Central Bank of Kenya a prescribed percentage of their total deposits. The ratio was revised to 5% in December

2008. Prior to that, the ratio was 6% andit is currently at 4.5%. The statutory deposits are determined from commercial banks monthly

returns submitted to Central Bank of Kenya onor before the tenth day of every month. Currently there are there are 43 licensed commercial

banks and 2 mortgage finance companies.

20(b) Local banksforex settlement accounts 2009

KShs million

Euro 228

Dollar 952

Sterling Pound 117

1297

20(c) Government of Kenya

Paymaster General 23,785

Treasury Funding Account 15,747

The Exchequer Account 18,417

Others 6.220

64,169_

2008
KShsmillion

162

950

127
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Under the Central Bank of Kenya Act Cap 491 section 4A (e) the Bank acts as the banker, advisor to, and as fiscal agent of the

Government. The Bank receives instructions to transfer funds from the Exchequer Account to voted accounts as per the Exchequer and

Audit Act 1955, Part IV Paragraph 17 (2). The instructions are given by the Treasury and specify the Exchequer Accountto be debited.

21 AMOUNTS REPAYABLE UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

This is money moped up from commercial banks by the Central Bank of Kenya for monetary policy purpose (liquidity management) and is

shownin the booksofthe Bank asa liability to the commercial banks. The money is secured by the Bank using treasury bills and bonds that

are described technically as Repos (or repurchase agreements). The balance at year end wasnil (2008: KShs 1,807 million) due to the Bank

injecting liquidity (reverse Repo) into the economy in contrast to mop-upactivities in 2008.

2009 2008
22 OTHERLIABILITIES KShsmillion KShs million

Impersonal accounts 325 3,467

Sundry creditors 663 662

Refundable deposits 421 234

Development deposits 79 100

1,488 4,463

23 PROVISIONS

Leave accrual 66 36

Gratuity to staff members 31 30

97 66

24 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised share capital 5,000 5,000

Issued and fully paid 5,000 1,500

The ownership ofthe entire share capital is vested in the Permanent Secretary to the Treasury.

25 GENERAL RESERVE FUND

The general reserve fund is a fund into which at least 10% of the net annual profits of the Bank is transferred at the end of each financial year.

This is after allowing for expenses for operation and after provision has been made for bad and doubtful debts, depreciation in assets,

contribution to staff benefit fund, and such other contingencies and accounting provisions as the Bank deems appropriate.

26 DIVIDENDS

The directors recommend the payment of KShs7.2 billion dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: KShs billion).

27 (a) NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities KShs million KShs million

Netprofit for the year 23,229 8,995

Adjustmentsfor:

Depreciation of property and equipment 231 143

Amortization of prepaid operating leases 3 4
Amortization of intangible assets 28 31

Revaluation of currency production costs 1,522 -

Exchangerate effects (13,462) (54)

Gain on disposal of property and equipment (10) (81)

Revaluation (surplus) deficit in defined benefit scheme (1,370) 185

Operating profit before working capital changes 10,171 9,223

Net(increase)/decrease in loans and advances (4,857) 282

Decrease in amounts repayable under repurchase agreements (1,807) (13,819)

(Decrease)/increase in deposits (5,504) 39,802

Increase in balance with International Monetary Fund 17,751 3,957

Decrease/(increase) in project accounts (244) 34

Decrease/(increase) in accrued interest on balances due from bankinginstitutions 1,767 (1,142)

Decrease/(increase) in items in the course of collection 1,455 (2,296)

(ncrease)/decrease in other assets (1,626) 318

(Decrease) / increase in otherliabilities (2,945) 2.801

Net cash generated by operations —14,161 39,160

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following:
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2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

Term deposits 221,824 210,866

Current accounts 2,598 4,423

Domestic forex cheques clearing 1,676 1,438

Travellers Cheques 6 6

Gold holdings 34 28

226,138 216,761
Investment in Governmentsecurities 15,010 8,539

Investments with RAMP 15,394 :

256,542 225,300

28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the course of its operations, the Bank enters into transactions with related parties, which include the Government of Kenya, the ultimate

ownerofthe Bank, and the Deposit Protection Fund Board.

@ Loans

The Bank extends loan facilities to its members of staff, the Governor and the Deputy Governor. Loans and advances (Note 12) include
advances to employeesthat as at 30 June 2009 amounted to KShs 2,493 million (2008: KShs 2,422 million). The advancesare at preferential

rates of interest determined by the Bank.
2009 2008

(ii) Loansto executive directors KShsmillion KShsmillion

At start of the year 1 2

Loans advanced during the year 10 -

Loan repayments (2) dd)

At end of the year 9 1

(iii) Loans to key management personnel

At start of the year 18 22

Loans advanced during the year 41 34

Loan repayments (20) (23)

At end of the year 39 33

(iv) Directors’ emoluments:

Fees to non executive directors 25 13

Other remuneration to executive directors 50 35

75 48

(v) Remuneration to senior management 148 134

(vi) Post employmentpension 2 2

(vii) Government of Kenya

Transactions entered into with the Governmentinclude:

(a) Bankingservices;

(b) Managementof issue and redemption of securities at a commission and;

(c) Foreign currency denominated debt settlement and other remittancesat a fee.

Asat the close ofbusiness on 30 June, the following balances, which are included in various balance sheet categories, were outstanding:

Due from Government of Kenya (Note 18) 33,329 34,439

Overdraft account (Note 12) 5,124 -

Loan from IMFto the Government of Kenya (Note 9) 718 1,053

Government of Kenya deposits (Note 20) 64,169 67,507

(viii) Deposit Protection Fund Board

The Bank hasa close working relationship with the Deposit Protection Fund Board, an entity incorporated under the Banking Act, and

provides it with staff and office accommodation. Certain costs incurred on behalf of the Deposit Protection Fund Board are fully

reimbursed to the Bank.

The balance outstanding from the Deposit Protection Fund Board and included in other assets as at year end was KShs 13 million

(2008: KShs 15million).
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(ix) Kenya School of Monetary Studies

The Kenya School of Monetary Studiesis a registered legal entity wholly owned by the Bank. The Schoolis operated as a department and

results of its operations are incorporated in the financial statements of the Bank.

29 RISK MANAGEMENT

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Structure and Reporting

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk management policy and

strategies. There are other organs that monitor the assessment and managementof risks within the Bank including;

(a) Audit Committee of the Board

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the fulfilment of its oversight responsibilities. Regarding risk management, the

Committee oversees the process of risk management by receiving and discussing risk management reports and guiding and
monitoring the implementation of recommended mitigating controls/ initiatives.

(b) Bank Risk Management Committee

The purpose of the Bank Risk Management Committee is to identify the nature of risks affecting the Bank and the processes

by which these risks are to be managed. The Committee monitors external developments relating to all financial, business and
strategic risks associated with the operations of the Bank. The Committee is further, charged with the responsibility of

reviewing the adequacy and overall effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management and business continuity management

frameworks and oversees the inculcation of a risk philosophy and implementation ofa risk strategy and policy across the Bank.

In executing its mandate, the Committee receives and considers risk assessment reports from Internal Audit and Risk

Management Department.

(c) Internal Audit and Risk Management Department (IARM)

The Internal Audit arm of IARM Department employs risk-based audit approach in planning and carrying out its audit

engagements. The Risk Management function facilitates risk assessments by individual departments where risks are identified,

analyzed and mitigating measures agreed upon.

The business processes are assessed with regard to business continuity procedures, physical safety, system safety, conformity

to legal requirements and regulations, sufficiency of human resources and information safety. In addition, the financial risks

and reputation risks are also determined. Controls that are designed to reduce these risks to acceptable levels are assessed in

termsof sufficiency and effectiveness; additional controls are recommendedin order to

increase effectiveness. Following the risk assessments, the major risks and recommendationsare used to update the Bank’s risk

register and regularly reported to the Bank Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee. Action plans that are taken

to reduce the risks to acceptable levels are monitored.

Strategy in Using Financial Instruments

The Bank holds foreign exchange reserves for the purposesof servicing official foreign debt, paying non-debt government and Central

Bank of Kenya expenditures abroad, and occasional intervention in the foreign exchange market to smoothen exchange rate

movements. The Bank can only intervene in the foreign exchange market when there are sharp exchange rate movements which are

likely to destabilize the financial market.

In view of the Bank’s reserve management policy of safe investment, liquidity and return, respectively, the Bank, with a prudent

approach,subjectsits foreign exchange reserves to investments in international markets.

In this framework, almost all the financial risks to which the Bank is exposed arise while fulfilling its duties of managing foreign

exchange reserves and rendering certain banking services to the banking sector and the Governmentof the Republic of Kenya. The

Bank is exposed to credit, market and liquidity risks due to the aforementioned operations. The financial risks that arise during the

management of foreign exchange reserves are the outcome of an investment choice. Nevertheless, the Bank endeavours to minimize

such risks by managing them with a conservative approach. Foreign exchange reserves are managed by observing the investment

criteria defined in the Bank’s Guidelines on Foreign Exchange Reserves Management.

Risks facing the Bank

The following are the main typesof risks that the Bank is exposedto in the course of executing its operations:

Financial Risks include:

(1) Credit risk

(2) Marketrisk

—Interest risk

—Foreign currency exchange risk

(3) Liquidity risk

Nonfinancial Risks include:

(4) Operational risk
(5) Humanresource risk

(6) Legalrisk

(7) Reputation risk
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Financial Risks

(a) Credit risk

During its financial operations, the Bank is exposed to credit risk, defined as the probability of a complete or partial failure of

counterparty to fulfil its obligations arising from a financial transaction. The credit risk basically originates from the investments

made of deposit placements, if on their maturity the depository bank is unable to pay.

The managementof the credit risk that the Bank is exposed to during the foreign exchange reserve management is based on the

principle of minimizing default probabilities of the counterparties and the financial loss in case of default. The choice of

depository banks for deposit placementsis a crucial consideration in credit and sovereign risk management. Currently, the Bank’s

choice of depository banks is confined to the top 200 international banks that meet the set eligibility criteria of financial soundness

on long-term credit rating, short-term credit rating, composite rating and capital adequacy. The current active approved depository

banks holding the Bank’s deposits number twenty one (21) and their performance is reviewed periodically, based on performance

ratings provided by international rating agency, Fitch IBCA. Deposit placementlimits are allocated to individual banks based on

their financial strength, and no individual bank holds more than 10% ofthe entire deposit portfolio.

To minimize the sovereign risk exposure, the eligible banks are distributed among 10 countries under the following set criteria;

long-term credit rating of A+, short-term credit rating of Fl, composite rating ofB and BIS capital adequacy ratio of 8%.

The Bank undertakesits operations in the Republic of Kenya. An analysis of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by geographical area

is given below:

Assets

Republic of Kenya

United Kingdom

Rest of Europe

United states of America

Rest of the World

Liabilities

Republic of Kenya

Interest risk(b)

2009
KSh. Millions

65,736
194,138
31,343
20,481

21
S1L717

311,717

2008

KSh. Millions

51,612
124,291
95,413
3,338
524

235,178

215,178

This table shows the extent to which the Bank’s interest rate exposures on assets and liabilities are matched. Items are allocated to time

bands by reference to the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date and maturity date.

Asat 30 June 2009

Assets

Balances due from bankinginstitutions and gold holdings

International Monetary Fund (SDR Account)

Items in the course of collection

Advances to Banks

Loans and advances

Otherassets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid leasehold land

Intangible assets

Retirementbenefit asset

Due from Government of Kenya

Total assets

Liabilities and equity

Currency in circulation

Deposits

International Monetary Fund

Amounts repayable under repurchase agreements
Otherliabilities

Equity and reserves

Totalliabilities and equity

Interest sensitivity gap 2009

Assets

Balances due from banking institutions and gold holdings

International Monetary Fund(SDR Account)

Itemsin the course of collection

Investment in governmentsecurities

Loans and advances

Otherassets

Between 3-12

months

KSh.million

3 months or

less

KSh. million

Over I year

KSh. million

Non-interest

bearing

KSh. million

 

Total

KSh.million

  

242,039 - - 4,695 246,734

914 - - - 914
- - - 1,430 1,430

15,011 - - - 15,011

74 934 7,309 - 8,317

- - - 2,870 2,870
- - - 1,034 1,034

- - - 275 275

- - - 378 378

- - - 1,425 1,425

- Lu 32,21 - 33,329

258.038 2.044 39.528 12,107 311,717

- - - 108,042 108,042

125,637 - - - 125,637

- - - 37,448 37,448

- - - 1,585 1,585

- - - 39.005 39.005

125,637 __: —_: 186,080 311,717

132,401 —2044 39,528 173,973) =

3 months Between 3- Over I year Non-interest Total

or less 12 months bearing

KShs million KShs million KShs million KShs million KShsmillion

219,035 - - 4,451 223,486

206 - - - 206

- - - 2,885 2,885

8,539 - - - 8,539

74 933 2,453 - 3,460

- - - 1,244 1,244
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3 months Between 3- Over I year Non-interest Total

or less 12 months bearing

KShs million KShs million KShs million KShs million KShs million

Property, plant and equipment - - - 568 568

Prepaid leasehold land - - - 278 278

Intangible assets - - - 18 18

Retirement benefit asset - - - 55 55

Due from Government of Kenya - 111 33,32 : 34,439

Total assets 227,85. 2,043 35,782 9.499 275,178

Liabilities and equity

Currency in circulation - - - 99,750 99,750

Deposits 131,141 - - - 131,141

International Monetary Fund - - - 19,697 19,697

Amounts repayable under repurchase agreements 1,807 - - - 1,807

Otherliabilities - - - 4,529 4.529

Equity and reserves - - - 18,254 18,254

Totalliabilities and equity 132,948 : : 142.230 275,178

Interest sensitivity gap 2008 94,906 2,043 35,782 32,731) —

c) Foreign currency exchangerate risk

Foreign currency exchangerate risk signifies the probability of incurring a loss stemming from adverse market movements, usually in

interest rates, currency exchangerates andassetprices.

For the purpose of managing foreign currency exchange rate risk, the Bank holds a diversified portfolio that spreads over the major

world currencies with the following features; stability, widely traded, international acceptability and offering the best range of

investment instruments. Guided by these features and the need to minimize transaction costs in external payments, the Bank invests its

reserves in four key international currencies, namely, US dollar (USD), British pound (GBP), Euro (EUR) and the Swiss Franc (CHF).

The distribution of these currencies in the portfolio is subject to review from time to time. However, to allow for flexibility in portfolio

management, the mix benchmarksare allowed +5% within the following ranges:

USD: 30-40%

GDP: 45-55%

EUR: 10-20%

CHF: 0-5%

The net foreign currency position of the Bank as of 30 June 2009 and 2008 is summarized below. The table presented below provides

the Bank’s assets, and liabilities, at carrying amounts, categorized by currency.

The various currencies to which the Bank is exposed at 30 June 2009 are summarised below (all expressed in KShs million):

  

 

 

 

  

   

 

USD GBP EURO SDR GOLD OTHER TOTAL

Assets

Balances due from bankinginstitutions 112,263 82,955 51,425 - - 57 246,700

Special Drawing Rights - - - 914 - - 914

Gold holdings : : : : 34 : 34

Total assets 112,263 82,955 51,425 914 34 37 247,648

Liabilities

Balances due to IMF - - - 37,448 - - 37,448

Commissions for EEC Development Fund - - 79 - - - 79

Local Banksforex settlements 952 118 229 - - - 1299

Local bank guarantees 272 - - - - - 272

Forex bureaux deposits 148 - - - - : 148

Total liabilities 1372 118 308 37,448 : : 39,246

Net balancesheet position 2009 110,891 82,837 SL117 (36,534) —_34 S57 208,402
Asat 30 June 2008(all expressed in KShs million):

USD GBP EURO SDR GOLD OTHER TOTAL

Assets

Balances due from banking institutions 73,789 108,802 40,326 - - 541 223,458

Special Drawing Rights - - - 206 - - 206

Gold holdings - - - - 28 : 28

Total assets 73,789 108.802 40,326 206 28 541 223,692

Liabilities

Balances due to IMF - - - 19,697 - - 19,697

Commissions for EEC Development Fund - 100 - - - - 100

Forex bureaux deposits 1,112 123 161 - : : 1,396

Totalliabilities 1112 223 161 19.697 : : 21,193

—28 S41 202,499Net balance sheet position 2008 72,677 108,579 40,165 (19,491)
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a) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as having difficulty in finding sufficient cash to meet the commitments that are due or being compelled to

convert assets into cash at a price lower thantheir fair value. The choice of the types of instruments to invest the reserves in is part of

liquidity risk management. The available instruments are governed by Section 26 of the Central Bank of Kenya Act which specifies the
eligible instruments in which the Bank can investits reserves including; gold, demandortime deposits and convertible and marketable

securities of or, guaranteed by foreign governmentsor international financialinstitutions.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Bank invests its surplus reserves in time deposits with maturities concentrated in short-term

maturity span of one to three months. The portfolio is structured in such a manner that a mix of deposits matures every week to ensure

availability of funds to meet scheduled government and the Bank’s obligations.

The table below analyses assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at 30 June 2009to the

contractual maturity date.

On Due within

 

demand 3 months

ASSETS KShs million KShs million

Balances due from banking institutions and gold
holdings 25,790 220,910
International Monetary Fund (SDR Account) 914 -

Loans and advances 5,124 118

Advancesto Banks against governmentsecurities - 15,011

Items in the course of collection 1,430 -

Otherassets - 2,870

Property, plant and equipment - -

Prepaid leasehold land - -

Intangible assets - -

Retirement benefit asset - -

Due from Government of Kenya - :

TOTAL ASSETS 33,258 238,909

LIABILITIES

Currency in circulation - -

Deposits 125,637 -

International Monetary Fund - -

Amounts repayable under repurchase agreements - -

Otherliabilities - 1,585

Equity and reserves - -

TOTALLIABILITIES AND EQUITY 125.637 1,585

Liquidity gap 2009 (92,379) 237,324

Asat 30 June 2008

On Due within

demand 3 months

KShs million KShs million

ASSETS
Balances due from bankinginstitutions and gold 12,798 210,660

holdings

International Monetary Fund(SDR Account) 206 -

Loansand advances 41 118

Investments in government securities - 8,539

Items in the course of collection 2,885 -

Otherassets - 1,244

Property, plant and equipment - 148

Prepaid leasehold land - 1

Intangible assets - 9

Retirement benefit asset - -
Due from Government of Kenya _- :

TOTAL ASSETS 15,930 220,719

LIABILITIES
Currency in circulation - -

Deposits 131,141 -

International Monetary Fund - -
Amounts repayable under repurchase agreements - 1,807

Otherliabilities - 4,529

Equity and reserves - -

TOTALLIABILITIES AND EQUITY 131,141 6,336

Liquidity gap 2008 415,211) 214,383

Due between

3-12 months

KShs million

 

Due between

3-12 months

KShs million

 

 

 

 

Due between Due after

1-Syrs 5 years Total

KShs million KShs million KShs million

- 34 246,734

- - 914

1,772 601 8,317

- - 15,011

- - 1,430

- - 2,870

- 1,034 1,034

- 275 275

- 378 378
- 1,425 1,425

4.440 27,779 33,329

6,212 31,526 311,717

- 108,042 108,042

- - 125,637

1,535 35,500 37,448

- - 1,585

- 39.005 39,005

1,535 182.547 311,717

4,677 (151,021) =

Due between Due after

1-Syrs 5 years Total

KShs million KShs million KShs million

- 28 223,486

- - 206

1,772 828 3,460

- - 8,539

- - 2,885

- - 1,244

54 - 568

14 260 278

- - 18

- 55 55

4.44 28.889 34,43

9

6,280 30,060 275,178

99,750 99,750

- - 131,141

1,535 17,749 19,697

- - 1,807

- - 4,529

- 18,254 18.254

1,535 135,753 275,178

4,745 105,693) ——
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30

Non-Financial Risk

f) Operationalrisk

Operationalrisk is the risk of loss due to human or system errors, incompatibility or failure of internal business processes, or external

events. The Bank seeks to minimize losses from operationalrisk by establishing effective internal control systems which prevent or

detect all errors and situations which might cause loss through failure of people or processes in such a way that losses are avoided or

reduced to the minimum possible extent. The Bank has assigned the responsibility for managing operationalrisks to the management

of the departments.

The assessmentof risks in terms of their effects and probabilities of occurrence and the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of the

controls established to mitigate the risks is done vide audits and risk assessments conducted by the Internal Audit and Risk

Management DepartmentZARM).

Human Resource Risk

The particular nature of the activities of the Bank necessitates specialized knowledge in manyareas.

The Bank ensuresthat there is an adequate knowledge base forall specialized job requirements by investing significantly in human

resource development in terms of capacity building and practical exposure. The Bank also organizes workshops, seminars,

conferences and job attachments to its staff as an effort to improve its human resource requirements.

Legal Risk

Legal risks arise from any uncertainty of enforceability, whether through legal or judicial processes, of the obligations of the Bank’s

clients and counter parties. These are the risks that the Bank may not be complying fully with the relevant lawsandlegislations. The

Bank aims at minimizing such uncertainties through continuous consultations with all relevant patties.

In mitigating these types of the risks, the Bank ensures that all business agreements are subjected to extensive legal reviews before

contracting.

Reputation Risk

The concern about reputation flows from the fact that the Bank is a public institution with important responsibilities for stability in the

value of money, the soundness and efficiency of the financial system and the issue of currency (notes and coins). All of these matters

have direct impactonall citizens and the credibility and the reputation of the Bank is an important factor in the successful fulfilment

of these responsibilities.

In managing this risk, the Bank adheres to the best practices and applies principles of sound corporate governance.It also ensures that

all key staff has a clear understanding of the appropriate processes in respect of the best practice and principles of good corporate

governance.

The Bank therefore, sets out policies and guidelines that govern sound functional operations within the Bank. The performance of

these policies and guidelines are periodically reported to different levels of the Bank’s Management for Control and Compliance

Monitoring.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The Bank uses models to assess the impact of possible changes in market risks. These risks include interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. The

Board is yet to establish limits on exposure gaps; these limits will be utilised to ensure risk positions are effectively managed. Thelimits will provide

possible alternative assumptionsto be applied as well as professionaljudgementto an analysis ofthe data available to support each assumption.

(@Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, including changes in the shape of yield curves. The Bank basesits

analysis on the interest sensitivity gap (Note 29). The sensitivity computations assumethat financial assets maintain a constant rate of return from

one year to the next. The effect on profit due to reasonable possible changesin interest rates, with all other variables held constant, is as follows:

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

Effect on profit before tax of a +13% change in interest rates

440 1,339

Effect on profit before tax of a -13% changein interest rates
(440) (1,339)

(ii) Currencyrisk

Currencyrisk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in exchange rates. The Bank bases its analysis on the interest sensitivity gap (Note 29). The

Bank hasassets and liabilities in various currencies; however, the most significant exposure arises from assets denominated in the US dollar, GBP

and Euro currencies. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to reasonably possible change in the KShs/ US dollar exchangerate, with all

other variables held constant, of the Bank’s profit earned.

2009 2008
KShs million KShsmillion

Effect on profit before tax of a +7% change in exchangerates 16,093 13,250

Effect on profit before tax of a -7% change in exchangerates (16,093) (13,250)
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31 FAIR VALUES AND EFFECTIVE INTEREST RATES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the Bank's financial assets andliabilities approximate their respective carrying amounts.

Fair values are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate based on the borrowing rate that directors expect would be available to

the Bank at the balance sheetdate.

The effective interest rates for the principalfinancial assets and liabilities at 30 June 2009 and 2008 were in the following ranges:

2009 2008
Assets

Governmentsecurities 6.64% 6.64%

Deposits with overseas correspondent banks
- current accounts 0.0% 0.0%

- term deposits (USD) 1.72% 4.75%

- term deposits (Sterling Pounds) 2.48% 5.90%

- term deposits (Euro)F 2.58% 4.44%

Loans and advances - commercial banks 8.50% 8.50%

- Government of Kenya 8.50% 8.50%

- employees 3.0% 3.0%

Due from Government of Kenya 3.0% 3.0%

Liabilities

- deposits 0.0% 0.0%

32 CONTINGENCIES

@ The Bank is party to various legal proceedings with potential liability of KShs 496.5 million as at 30 June 2009. Having regard to all

circumstancesand the legal advice received, the directors are of the opinion that these legal proceedings will not give rise to liabilities.

(ii) The Bank has applied for waiver of interest and penalties amounting to KShs 22,530,780 relating to PAYE and withholding tax arising

from an assessment conducted by Kenya Revenue Authority. The directors are of the opinion thatthe liability will not crystallize because of

the expected success of the request for waiver.

33 COMMITMENTS

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

(a) Capital: Authorised and contracted for 17 _10

(b) Capital: Authorised and not contracted for

Office furniture 491 16

Office equipment 1,291 1,761

Computer equipment 1,136 1,372

Computer equipment - SIMBA Software 677 -

Computer equipment - SIMBA Hardware 261 -

Fixtures & fittings 158 121

Motorvehicles 53 143

Consultancy contracts 358 -

Plot acquisition & development 650 665

Others 86 59

5.16] 224
34 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

AS LESSEE:

Thetotal future minimum lease payments due to third parties under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2009 2008
KShs million KShs million

One year ll ll

Between twoandfive years 7 7

Overfive years 140 140

158 158
Lease commitments relate to lease rentals for L.R No. 209/11441.

35 EMPLOYEES

The average number of employees during the year was 1,220 (2008: 1,255).

36 TAXES

Noprovision for tax is made as Section 7 of the Income Tax Act exempts the Bank from any taxation imposed by law in respect of income or

profits. This exemption includes stamp duty in respect of instruments executed by or on behalf of the Bank.

37 COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted or excluded to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009, which showsthe state of affairs of

the Board.

1. INCORPORATION

The Boardis incorporated under the Banking Act Cap 488 of the Laws of Kenya.

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Boardis established and administered under the Banking Act with the principal object to provide a deposit insurance scheme for customers of

memberinstitutions and liquidate and wind up the operations of any institution in respect of which the Board is appointed as a liquidator in

accordance with the Banking Act or any other written law.

3. RESULTS

Theresults for the year are set out below.

4, DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of this report are listed above.

5. AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, were appointed during the financial year 2007/2008in line with the Public Procurement and Disposal Act (2005), for a

period of four years.

By order of the Board

Dated 30th September, 2009.

JANEK. IKUNYUA

Board Secretary.
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STATEMENTOF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The Banking Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view ofthe state of affairs of

the Board as at the end of the financial year and of its operating results for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that the Board keeps

proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Board. They are also responsible for safeguarding

the assets of the Board.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the

Banking Act. The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Board

and of its operating results. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records which may berelied upon in the

preparation of the financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internalfinancial control.

Nothing has cometo the attention of the directors to indicate that the Board will not remain a going concern forat least the next twelve months from

the date of this statement.

Dated 30th September, 2009.

NJUGUNA 8S. NDUNGU
Chairman.

TERENCE DAVIDSON

Member.

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MINISTER FOR FINANCE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSOF

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD

Report on the Financial Statements

Wehave audited the accompanying financial statements of the Deposit Protection Fund Board set out on below which comprise the balance sheet as

at 30 June 2009, and the Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Fund Balance and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the International Financial

Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International

Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Webelieve that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Deposit Protection Fund Board as at 30 June 2009,

and ofits financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the

requirements of the Banking Act (Cap 488).

Report on Other Matters

Wealso report to you, based on our audit, that:

(i) Wehave obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our

audit;

(ii) In our opinion proper booksof account have been kept by the Board, so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(iii) The Board’s balance sheet and incomestatement are in agreement with the books of account.

Dated 30th September, 2009.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD BALANCESHEETASAT 30TH JUNE 2009

2009 2008

Note KShs’000 KShs’000

ASSETS

NON-CURRENTASSETS

Property and equipment 2 28,328 30,938
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2009 2008

Note KShs’000 KShs’000

Prepaid operating lease rentals 3 3,812 3,911

Investment held for sale 4 100 100

Governmentsecurities 5 6,592,751 4,991,908

6,624,991 5,026,857

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors and prepayments 6 12,896 22,296

Governmentsecurities 5 14,118,498 12,963,007

Cash and bank balance 564 2,038

14,131,958 12,987,341

TOTAL ASSETS 20,756,949 18,014,198

FUND BALANCEANDLIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE 7 20,739,365 17,968,316

CURRENTLIABILITIES

Creditors and accruals 8 4,554 10,644

Dueto related party 9 13,030 14,519

Provision for protected deposit claims 10 - 20,719

17,584 45,882

TOTAL FUND BALANCEANDLIABILITIES 20,756,949 18,014,198

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 30th September, 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

NJUGUNA 8S. NDUNGU
Chairman.

TERENCE DAVIDSON

Member.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD INCOME STATEMENTFOR THE YEAR ENDED30TH JUNE,2009

2009 2008
Note KShs’000 KShs’000

REVENUE

Assessment income 11(a) 1,110,684 919,134

Investment income 11(b) 1,755,715 1,447,621

Other income 12 37,088 5,390

Write back of protected deposits 13 26,760 442

2,930,247 2,372,587

EXPENSES:

Administration and establishment 14 142,082 127,107

Provision for doubtful debts 6(b) 17,116 :

159,198 127,107

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 2,771,049 2,245,480

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FUND BALANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE

Balance at 1 July 2007

Surplusfor the year

Balance at 30 June 2008

Balance at 1 July 2008

2009

Fund Balance

KShs’000

15,722,836

2,245 480eet

17,968,316ee

17,968,316
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Fund Balance

KShs’000

Surplus for the year 2,771,049

Balanceat 30 June 2009 20,739,365

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE 2009

2009 2008
Note KShs’000 KShs’000

Cash flows from operating activities:

Surplus for the year 2,771,049 2,245,480

Adjustmentfor:-
Depreciation of property and equipment 3,446 4.227

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease rentals 99 99

Write-back of Provision for protected deposits (20,791) -

Interest income (1,755,715) (1,447,621)

Operating surplus before working capital changes 998,088 802,185

Debtors and prepayments 9,400 (15,523)

Creditors and accruals (6090) (3,223)

Related party account (1,489) (8,905)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities 999.909 774,534

Cash flows from investing activities:-

Reversal (Payment) of protected deposit claims 72 (260)
Purchase of investments (586,158) (1,873,200)

Purchase of property and equipment (836) (1,382)

Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment - -

Interest received 1,755,715 1,447,621

Net cash flows from investmentactivities 1,168,793 (427,221)

Net movementin cash and cash equivalents 2,168,702 347,313

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,539,955 6,192,642

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 8,708,657 6,539,955

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED30 JUNE 2009

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, unless otherwisestated.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

() Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Interpretations of those Standards as

adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board. The financial statements are presented in thousands of Kenya Shillings (KShs’000) and are

prepared underthe historical cost convention except for measurementat fair value of certain investments.

(ii) Statement of compliance

The financial statements are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and interpretations ofthose Standards.

(iii) Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previousfinancial year.

(iv) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2008

The following amendment to Standards and Interpretations are mandatory though not relevant to the Board. The effective date of the amendments was 1

July 2008.

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures - Reclassification of

financial assets. The amendments allow entities to reclassify certain financial assets out of held-for-trading if they are no longer held for the purpose

of being sold or repurchased in the near term. Financial assets that would be eligible for classification as loans and receivables (ie those assets which,

apart from not being held with the intent of sale in the near term, have fixed or determinable payments, are not quoted in an active market and contain

no features which could cause the holder not to recover substantially all of its initial investment except through credit deterioration) may be

transferred from ‘Held-for-trading’ to ‘Loans and receivables’, if the entity has the intention and the ability to hold them for the foreseeable future.

Financial assets that are noteligible for classification as loans and receivables may be transferred from ‘Held-for-trading’ to “Available-for-sale’ or to

‘Held-to-maturity’, only in rare circumstances. The amendment requires detailed disclosures relating to such reclassifications. The effective date of

the amendmentis 1 July 2008 andreclassifications before that date are not permitted.
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IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes —The IFRIC issued IFRIC 13 in June 2007. This interpretation requires customer loyalty credits to be

accounted for as a separate componentof the sales transaction in which they are granted. A portion of the fair value of the consideration received is

allocated to award credits.
IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their interaction - IFRIC Interpretation 14 provides

guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset under IAS 1.

(v) Standards, amendmentsand interpretations effective in 2008 but not relevant

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008 but are not

relevant to the Board’s operations:

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions - This interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an

entity’s equity instruments to be accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the entity buys the instruments from another party, or the

shareholders provide the equity instruments needed.

IFRIC 12, Service Concession Agreements -The IFRIC was issued in November 2006. This interpretation applies to service concession operators and

explains how to account for the obligations undertaken and rights received in service concession arrangements.

(vi) Standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued andare notyet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective for the

Board's operations and which the Board hasnot early adopted:

IFRS 2, Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (effective from 1 January 2009). The Standard

restricts the definition of "vesting condition" to a condition that includes an explicit or implicit requirement to provide services. Any other conditions

are non-vesting conditions, which have to be taken into account to determine the fair value of the equity instruments granted. In the case that the

award does not vest as the result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is within the control of either the entity or the counterparty, this

must be accounted for as a cancellation.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective I July 2009) - The revised standards were

issued in January 2008 and become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3Rintroduces a numberof changes in the

accounting for business combinations occurring after this date that will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period

that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. [AS 27 requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control)

is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes

the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments were made to IAS
7 Statement of Cash Flows, IAS 12 Income Taxes, IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, IAS 28 Investment in Associates and

IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. The changes by IFRS 3 and IAS 27 will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions with minority

interests.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments. This standard requires disclosure of information about the Board's operating segments and replaced the requirement to
determine primary (business) and secondary (geographical) reporting segments of the Board. IFRS replaces IAS 14 Segment Reporting (IAS 14)

uponeffective date.

IAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements. The standard replaces IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised in 2003) as

amended in 2005. The revised IAS 1 wasissued in September 2007 andis effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 with

eatly application permitted. The Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity will include only

details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition, the Standard introduces the statement

of comprehensive income, which presents income and expense items recognised in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised income

and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective from 1 January 2009)-The IASB issued an amendment to IAS 23 in April 2007. The revised IAS 23 requires

capitalisation of borrowingcosts that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset.

IAS 32, Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable Financial Instruments

and Obligations Arising on Liquidation -These amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 were issued in February 2008 and become effective for financial

years beginning onor after 1 January 2009. The revisions provide a limited scope exception for puttable instruments to be classified as equity if they

fulfil a numberof specified features.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items - These amendments to IAS 39 were issued in August 2008

and become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009. The amendmentaddresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged

item, and the designationof inflation as a hedgedrisk or portionin particularsituations. It clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of

the fair value changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as hedged item.

IFRIC 15 Agreementfor the Construction of Real Estate-IFRIC 15 was issued in July 2008 and becomeseffective for financial years beginning on or

after 1 January 2009. The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively. It clarifies when and how revenue and related expenses from the sale of a

real estate unit should be recognised if an agreement between a developer and a buyer is reached before the construction of the real estate is

completed. Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreementis within the scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18.

IFRIC 16 Hedgesof a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation - IFRIC 16 wasissued in July 2008 and becomeseffective for financial years beginning

on or after 1 October 2008. The interpretation is to be applied prospectively. IFRIC 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge of a net

investment. As such it provides guidance on identifying the foreign currencyrisks that qualify for hedge accounting in the hedge ofa net investment,

where within the group the hedging instruments can be held in the hedge of a net investment and how an entity should determine the amount of

foreign currency gain orloss, relating to both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposalof the net investment.

IFRIC 17-Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners-effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009-This interpretation provides guidance

on accounting for arrangements whereby an entity distributes non-cash assets to shareholderseither as a distribution ofreservesor as dividends.

IFRIC 18-Transfers of Assets from Customers effective for periods beginning on orafter 1 July 2009-This interpretation provides guidance on how

to account for items of property, plant and equipment received from customers, or cash that is received and used to acquire or construct specific

assets. This interpretation only applies to such assets that are used to connect the customer to a network or to provide ongoing access to a supply of

goodsorservices or both.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards will have no material effect on the financial statements of the Board.
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(vii) Improvements to IFRS’s

In May 2008, the International Accounting Standards Board issued its first omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to

removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard.

The Board has not yet adopted the following amendments and anticipates that these changes will have no material effect on the financial statements.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: Removalofthe reference to ‘total interest income’ as a componentof financecosts.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Clarification that only implementation guidance that is an integral part of an

IFRS is mandatory when selecting accounting policies.

IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period: Clarification that dividends declared after the end of the reporting period are not obligations.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Items of property, plant and equipment held for rental, are transferred to inventory when the rental ceases and

they are held forsale.

IAS 18 Revenue: Replacementof the term ‘direct costs’ with “transaction costs’ as defined in IAS 39.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Revised the definition of ‘past service costs’ ‘return on plan assets’ and ‘short term’ and ‘other long-term’ employee

benefits. Amendments to plans that result in a reduction in benefits related to future services are accounted for as curtailment. Deleted the reference

to the recognition of contingentliabilities to ensure consistency with IAS 37.

IAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance:

IAS 38 Intangible Assets: Expenditure on advertising and promotionalactivities is recognised as an expense when the company either hasthe right to

access the goodsor has received the service.

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement: Changes in circumstancesrelating to derivatives are notreclassifications and therefore

may be either removed from, or included in, the ‘fair value through profit or loss’ classification after initial recognition. Removed the reference in

IAS 39 to a ‘segment’ when determining whether an instrument qualifies as a hedge. Require the use of the revised effective interest rate when re-

measuring a debt instrument on the cessation of fair value hedge accounting.

b) Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during

the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the directors’ best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately may differ

from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period orin the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

currentand future periods. The most significant use ofjudgment and estimatesare as follows:

Property and Equipment

Critical estimates are made by the managementin determining depreciation and amortisation rates for property and equipment. The rates used are set out in

the accounting policy for property, equipment and depreciation.
Allowancefor doubtful receivables

The Board reviews its receivables’ portfolio regularly to assess the likelihood of impairment. This requires an estimation of the amounts that are

irrecoverable especially debts incurred by institutions underliquidation.

Going concern

Management has made an assessment of the Board’s ability to continue as a going concern and issatisfied that the Board has the resources to continue in

business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Board’s

ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

c) Revenuerecognition

Assessed income comprises contributions levied to the contributory institutions and is recognized in the period whenthey are receivable. Such contributions

are assessed at a rate of 0.15 per cent of the average of the institutions’ total deposit liabilities during the period of 12 months prior to the date of levy

notice.

Interest income is recognized in the period in whichit is earned based on the expired portion of the life of the investments it relates to. Interest is primarily

eamed on Treasury bills and bonds and other interest carrying instruments.

Discounts and premiums on acquisition of governmentsecurities are amortized overthe life of the security.

d) Provisions for payments to depositors

Provisions for payments to protected depositors are recognized in the financial statements in the period the contributory institutions are placed under

liquidation. Any payments that exceed the provisions made are taken into account in determining operating profit. Provisions that relate to unclaimed

protected deposits are written back to income on expiry ofthe statutory notice period.

e) Property, equipment and depreciation

Property and equipmentare stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated at annual rates estimated to write off carrying values of

the assets over their expected useful lives on the reducing balance basis except for buildings and computers which are depreciated onthe straightline basis.

The annual depreciation rates in use are:

Buildings 2.2%

Fixtures,fittings andfittings 12.5%
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Office and kitchen equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Computers 33.33%

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment when events or changes in circumstances

indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable

amountthe assets are written downto their recoverable amount.

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amounts and are taken into account in

determining operating profit.

f) Leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Payments made

under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the income statementon straightline basis over the lease term.

g) Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements are recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for such entitlementsas a result

of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. The estimated monetary liability for employees’ accrued annual leave entitlementat

the balance sheet date is recognized as an expense accrual.

Retirement benefit costs

The Board’s employeesare eligible for retirement benefits under a defined benefit plan provided through a separate fund. The defined benefit plan is

funded by the Board and the Central Bank, the main sponsor. The retirement benefit asset is wholly recognized in the financial statements of the

Central Bank while the Board recognizes contributions to the fundasif it were a defined contribution scheme by charging them to the profit and loss

account in the year to whichtheyrelate.

The Board also contributes to a statutory defined contribution Pension Scheme, the National Social Security Fund (NSSF). Contributions are

determined by local statute and are currently limited to KShs. 200 per employee per month. The contributions are charged to income and expenditure

account in the year to which they relate.

h) Taxation

The Board’s incomeis not subject to tax as it has been granted exemption by the Commissioner of Income Tax. Therefore no provision for current tax or

deferred tax is madein the financial statements.

i Financial instruments

The Board’s financial instruments which comprise governmentsecurities, receivables and payablesfall into the following categories:

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Board has the

positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. All Investments in governmentsecurities are classified as held to maturity and are initially recognised at

cost and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any

discount or premium on acquisition. The amortisation of such investments is recognised in the income statement.

Receivables

Receivables which comprise debtors and prepayments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market. After initial measurement, receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Payables

Payables comptise creditors and accruals, provisions for protected deposit claims and amounts due to Central Bank of Kenya. They are classified as

financial liabilities and are carried at amortized cost.

A financial asset is impairedif its carrying amountis greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The amountof the impairmentlosses are recognised
in the incomestatement.

Dd Investment held for sale

Investment held for sale relates to investment in a subsidiary which is accounted for under IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations’. The investmentis stated at the lowerof its carrying amount and the fair valueless coststo sell.

k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand and in bank accounts. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purposes of the cash

flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances, and governmentsecurities maturing within 91 days of the balance sheet.

Furniture Office and kitchen Motor

Buildings & fittings equipment vehicle Computers Total

KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000

2. PROPERTY AND
EQUIPMENT
COST
At 1 July 2008 16,559 14,744 6,219 8,713 4,155 50,390
Additions : 597 : : 239 836

At 30 June 2009 16,559 15,341 6,219 8,713 4,394 51,226
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Furniture Office and kitchen Motor

Buildings & fittings equipment vehicle Computers Total

KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000

DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2008 2,219 3,843 4,473 5,330 3,587 19,452
Charge for the year 364 1,437 348 845 452 3,446

At 30 June 2009 2,583 5,280 4,821 6,175 4,039 22,898

NET BOOKVALUE

At 30 June 2009 13,976 10,061 1,397 2,538 355 28,328

COST
At 1 July 2007 16,559 13,952 6,219 8,713 3,565 49,008
Additions - 792 - - 590 1,382

At 30 June 2008 16,559 14,744 6,219 8.713 4.155 50,390

DEPRECIATION

At 1 July 2007 1,855 2,287 4,038 4,203 2,842 15,225
Charge for the year 364 1,556 435 1,127 745 4.227

At 30 June 2008 2,219 3,843 4,473 5,330 3,587 19.452

NET BOOKVALUE

At 30 June 2008 14,340 10,901 1,746 3,383 568 30,938

No depreciation has been charged in arriving at the results for the year in respectof certain fully depreciated assets with a cost of KShs 3,384,490 (2008:

KShs 1,920,535) and arestill in use. If depreciation had been charged during the year on the cost of these assets at normal rates it would have amounted to

KShs 1,129,830 (2008: KShs 640,178).

DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED30 JUNE 2009

3. PREPAID OPERATING LEASE RENTALS

Cost
At 30 June

Amottisation

At beginning of the year

Amortisation for the year

At endof the year

Net carrying value at end of the year

4. INVESTMENT HELD FOR SALE

Investment in Consolidated Bank of Kenya Limited
10,000,000 ordinary shares of KShs 20 each

Provision for diminution in value

2009

KShs’000

4,522

2009

KShs’000

611

99

200,000
(199,900)

100

2008

KShs’000

4,522

2008

KShs’000

512

99

611

3,911=

200,000
(199,900)

100

The Board owns 50.2% of the ordinary share capital of the Consolidated Bank of Kenya Limited. At the time of acquisition of the investment, the

Banking Act allowed the Board to acquire, hold or dispose shares of an institution that would result in a loss to the Board. The Banking Act waslater

amended and now prevents the Board from holding investments other than in government securities. The Board has signed the agreementtransferring the

shareholding in Consolidated Bank of Kenya Limited to Treasury for onwardsale to third parties. Due to the above, the requirement for consolidation on

IAS 27 does not apply. The Government, through Treasury plans to privatize Consolidated Bank and hastherefore directed the Privatization Commission

to explore and advice on how the shares are to be sold, either through an initial public offering or to a strategic partner.

The investment was last valued in December 2004 by external consultants and the value of the shares was considered to be effectively nil. In the opinion

ofthe directors, the additional diminution in value of KShs 100,000 based on this valuation is not material for recognition in the financial statements.

5. GOVERNMENTSECURITIES
Treasury bills maturing within 91 days of the balance sheet date(Note 15)

2009

KShs’000

8,223,846

2008

KShs’000

5,870,069
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2009 2008
KShs’000 KShs’000

Treasury bills maturing after 91 days of the balance sheet date

4,027,291 5,882,077
Treasury bonds maturing within 91 days of the balance sheet date(Note 15)

484,247 667,848

Treasury bonds maturing after 91 days of the Balance sheet date but within 1 year
1,383,114 543,013

Treasury bonds maturing after 1 year of the Balance sheet date

6,592,751 4,991,908

20,711,249 17,954,915

Comprising
—

Maturing within 1 year of the balance sheet date 14,118,498 12,963,007

Maturing after 1 year of the balance sheet date 6,592,751 4.991.908

20,711,249 17,954,915

The weighted average effective interest rate on held to maturity investments as at 30 June 2009 was 10.22% (2008: 8.59%).

6. (a) DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS 2009 2008

KShs’000 KShs’000

Debtors and prepayments 162,158 188,775

Provision for bad debts (Note 6b) (149,262) (166,479)

12,896 22,296

(b) PROVISIONS FOR IMPAIRED DEBTORS

Asat 30 June 2009, debtors amounting to KShs 149 million were fully impaired and provided for. Movements in the provisions for
impairmentof receivables were as follows:

2009 2008
KShs’000 KShs’000

At 1 July 166,479 167,776

Additional provision 17,116 -

Write back-provision for bad debts (Note 12) (34,333) (1,297)

At 30 June (Note 6a) (149,262) (166,479)

7 FUND BALANCE

Atstart of year 17,968,316 15,722,836
Surplus for the year 2,771,049 2.245.480

At end ofyear 20,739,365 17,968,316

The Fund balancerelates to accumulated surpluses.

8. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Sundry creditors and accruals 4,241 4363

Unclaimed stale cheques 313 6.281

4,554 10,644

9, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Due to Central Bank of Kenya 13,030 14,519

(b) Directors’ emoluments and senior management remuneration

Feesto directors 2,840 2,649

Remuneration to senior management 44,465 44,491

10. PROVISION FOR PROTECTED DEPOSIT CLAIMS 2009 2008

KShs’000 KShs’000

Balance brought forward 20,719 20,979

Reversal (payments) during the year 72 (260)

20,791 -

Write-back of protected deposit (20,791) :

Balance carried forward 20,719
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11. INCOME 2009 2008
(a) ASSESSED INCOME KShs’000 KShs’000

Total average deposits ofinstitutions assessed

as contributors 740,255,964 612,156,269

0.15% of total average deposits 1,110,384 918,234

Minimum contributions from 1 bank

(2008: 3 banks) 300 900

Total assessed income 1,110,684 919,134

(b} INVESTMENT INCOME

(i) Interest earned on Treasury bills received on
Maturedbills 1,089,958 674,662

Discount on purchase 3,743 154,192

1,093,701 828.854

(ii) Interest earned on Treasury bonds received on

Matured bonds 612,904 610,077

Discount on purchase 58,762 21,188

Amortisation of premium (9,652) (12,498)

662,014 618,767

Total investment income 1,755,715 1,447,621

12. OTHER INCOME

Recoveries from subrogated claims 2,330 3

Penalty charges on late contributions 425 873

Baddebts recovered 34,333 1,297

Grants Income - 2,849

Miscellaneous income - 368

37,088 5,390

13. WRITEBACKOF PROTECTED DEPOSITS 2009 2008

KShs’000 KShs’000
Write-back of provision for protected deposit 20,791 -

Stale cheques written back 5,969 442

26,760 442

The Board has been making provisions equivalent to the amountof its exposure to protected depositors whenevera bank orfinancialinstitution is put

underliquidation. The period for claims to be made by protected depositors underthe statute is two years after the date of notice. The Board hasalso

written back cheques that were issued to protected depositors that have not been presented until the balance sheet date and are stale by virtue ofbeing

over 7 years old. The directors are of the opinion that no claim will be payable in respect of these cheques.

14, ADMINISTRATION AND ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES 2009 2008

KShs’000 KShs’000

Staff costs 108,784 95,676

Depreciation 3,446 4.227

Lease amottization 99 99

Auditors remuneration 601 601

Directors’ emoluments - fees 2,840 2,649

Legal and professionalfees 375 2,662

Other 25,937 21,193

142,082 127,107

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprises the

following balance sheet amounts

Treasury bills maturing within 91 days of the
balance sheet date(Note 5) 8,223,846 5,870,069

Treasury bonds maturing within 91 days of the
balance sheet date(Note 5) 484,247 667,848

Cash and bank balance 564 2,038

8,708,657 6,539,955

16. COMMITMENTS

Authorised but not contracted for 17,150 8,340> a
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Capital commitments authorised relates mainly to library books, copier, guard house, godown racks and an electric fence and alarm system for the

godown.

2009 2008
KShs’000 KShs’000

Operating lease commitments

Falling due within one year 25,475 25,475

Falling due between one and five years 101,900 101,900

Falling due over five years 881,435 906,910

1,008,810 1,034,285

17. RISK MANAGEMENT

Structure and Reporting

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk managementpolicy andstrategies.

There are other organs that monitor the assessment and managementofrisks within the Board including;

(a) Audit Committee of the Board

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the fulfillment of its oversight responsibilities. The Committee guides and monitors the implementation

of controls by the Board.

(b) Deposit Insurance and Risk ManagementSection

The Board has an established Deposit Insurance & Risk ManagementSection that receives off-site information on deposits from memberinstitutions

for analysis and works closely with Central Bank of Kenya to monitor the performance of the Banking industry.

(c) Internal Audit and Risk Management Department (ARM)

The operations of the Board are subject to internal audit by the TARM) department of the Central Bank of Kenya. The (ARM) department employs

risk-based audit approach in planning and carrying out its audit engagements. The business processes are assessed with regard to business continuity

procedures, physical safety, system safety, conformity to legal requirements and regulations, sufficiency of human resources and information safety.

In addition, the financial risks and reputation risks are also determined. Controls that are designed to reduce these risks to acceptable levels are

assessed in termsof sufficiency and effectiveness; additional controls are recommendedin order to increase effectiveness.

The mainrisks faced by the Board in respect ofits principal non-derivative financial instruments are interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The directors

review and agree on policies for managing these risks. The Board maintains a conservative policy regarding interest rate and liquidity risks. The

Board does not engage in speculation in the markets. In addition, the Board does not speculate or trade in derivative financial instruments.

The Board’s principal financial instruments comprise investments held to maturity; cash and cash equivalents; debtors and prepayments; creditors

and accruals; provisions for protected deposit claims; and amounts dueto related parties.
Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value and cash flowsof a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Excess funds

held by the Board are invested in Treasury bills and Treasury bonds.

The following table sets out the carrying amount by maturity, of the Board’s financial instruments that are exposedto interest rate risk:

 

Non

Upto 3 3-12 Months Interest

months 1-6 Years Bearing Total

KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000
Debtors and prepayments

- - - 12,896 12,896
Cash and bank balance

- - - 564 564
Investments held to Maturity

8,708,094 5,410,404 6,592,751 - 20,711,249
Creditors and accruals

- - - (4,554) (4,554)
Dueto related party - - - (13,030) (13,030)

Protected deposits - - - - -

Interest sensitivity gap

At 30 June 2009 8,708,094 5,410,404 6,592,751 (4,124) 20,707,125

At 30 June 2008 6,537,917 6,425,090 4,991,908 (21,548) 17,933 367

  

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates, with all other variables held constant, on the

Board's surplus. The sensitivity computations assumethat financial assets maintain a constant rate of return from one year to the next.

2009 2008
KShs’000 KShs’000

Effect on profit before tax of a +5% change in interest rates 87,786 72,381

Effect on profit before tax of a -5% change in interest rates (87,786) (72,381)
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Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Board will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial liabilities. The Board’s approach to

managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Board’s reputation. In the course of its operations the Board invests its capital in forms that vary in

liquidity ranging from government securities that are readily convertible and sundry debtors. Simultaneously it carries current liabilities in form of

provisions for protected deposits, sundry creditors and related party liabilities. The entity matches its current assets to the currentliabilities falling

due to mitigate the risk of low liquidity.

The Board’s financialliabilities amount to KShs 17.584 million (2008: KShs 45.882 million) and are all short term.

Currency risk

The Board operates wholly within Kenya andits assets and liabilities are reported in the local currency. It does nottransact in foreign currencies.

Fair value

The table set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts andfair valuesofall the Board’s financial instruments that are carried in the

financial statements.

2009 2008

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

value value value value

KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000 KShs’000

Financial assets

Debtors and prepayments 12,896 12,896 22,296 22,296

Cash and Bank balance 564 564 2,038 2,038

Investments held to Maturity 20,711,249 20,711,249 17,954,915 17,954,915

Financialliabilities

Creditors and accruals 4,554 4,554 10,644 10,644

Dueto Related Party 13,030 13,030 14,519 14,519

Protected Deposits - - 20,719 20,719

The directors are of the opinion that the carrying value of financial instruments approximates their fair value.

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Central Bank of Kenya and the Board and are related parties, performing connected duties of bank supervision and deposit protection

respectively. No trading is carried with the Central Bank. The following transactions howevertake place between the two organizations:

(a) The Central Bank pays some operating expenses on behalf of the Board. These are fully reimbursed.

(b) The staff of the Board are contractually employees of the Central Bank but seconded to the Board. Salaries of these staff are met by the

Central Bank and fully reimbursed by the Board. In the year, salaries paid to staff by the Central Bank amounted to KShs 87.74 million

(2008: KShs 78.95 million).

(c) The Central Bank is also the sponsor of the Staff Pension Fund to which the Board contributes on behalf of employees secondedto it from the

Central Bank. In the year, the Board’s contribution to the fund amounted to KShs 3.7 million (2008: KShs 4.2 million).

(d) The Central Bank provides the Board with office space and charges it rent. The Board also reimburses maintenance costs incurred by the

Central Bank on its behalf. In the year, rent and maintenance costs charged amounted to KShs 8.11 million (2008: KShs 8.09 million).

The balance at year-end on transactions with the Central Bank is shownin note 9.

19, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Board’s capital management are to ensure that the Board maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business and to maximize the value for the insured depositors in memberinstitutions. The Board managesits capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, as per the requirements of the Banking Act. The total accumulated Fundas at 30 June 2009 was KShs20.74 billion (2008: KShs 17.97billion).

20. CONTIGENTLIABILITIES

Litigation

Mr. Ajay Shah filed a case in 2002 claiming general damages and special damages amounting to KShs 144 million against Trust Bank Limited (In

Liquidation) and the Board on allegations of defamation and publication of malicious false statements. The suit is pending for hearing. No

provision has been madein the financial statements because, in the opinion of the directors, the claim is unlikely to succeed.

21. COMPARATIVES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changesin presentation in the current year.

22. ESTABLISHMENT

Deposit Protection Fund Boardis established in Kenya under the Banking Act and is domiciled in Kenya.

23, CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Kenya Shillings (KShs’000), and are roundedto the nearest KShs 1,000.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION FUND BOARD COMMERCIAL BANKS AND OTHERFINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ASSESSED

CONTRIBUTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

COMMERCIAL BANKS SCHEDULE A

1. African Banking Corporation Limited

2. Bank of Africa Kenya Limited

3. Bank of Baroda Kenya Limited

4. Bank ofIndia Limited

5. Barclays Bank of Kenya Limited

6. CFC Stanbic Bank Limited

7. Charterhouse Bank Limited

8. Chase Bank Limited

9. Citibank N.A.
10. City Finance Bank Limited

ll. Commercial Bank of Africa Limited

12. Consolidated Bank of Kenya Limited

13. Co-operative Bank of Kenya Limited
14. Credit Bank Limited

15. Development Bank of Kenya Limited

16. Diamond Trust Bank Kenya Limited

17. Dubai Bank Kenya Limited

18. Ecobank KenyaLimited

19. Equatorial Commercial Bank Limited

20. Equity Bank Limited

21. Family Bank Limited

22. Fidelity Commercial Bank Limited

23. FINA Bank Limited

24. First Community Bank Limited

25. Giro Commercial Bank Limited

26. Guardian Bank Limited

27. Gulf African Bank Limited

28. Habib Bank A.G. Zurich
29. Habib Bank Limited
30. Imperial Bank Limited

31. Investment & Mortgages Bank Limited

32. Kenya Commercial Bank Limited

33. K-Rep Bank Limited

34. Middle East Bank Kenya Limited

35. National Bank of Kenya Limited

36. NIC Bank Limited

37. Oriental Commercial Bank Limited

38. Paramount Universal Bank Limited

39. Prime Bank Limited

40. Southern Credit Banking Corporation Limited

41. Standard Chartered Bank of Kenya Limited
42. Transnational Bank Limited

43. Victoria Commercial Bank Limited

MORTGAGEFINANCIALINSTITUTIONS

1. Housing Finance Company of Kenya Limited

2. S. & L. Kenya Limited

MICROFINANCEINSTITUTIONS

1. Faulu Kenya Limited

 

GAZETTE NOTICE No.11419

THE BANKING ACT

(Cap. 488)

NOTICEis given undersection 38 (7) of the Banking Actthat the underlisted Institutions have their deposits protected by the Deposit Protection

Fund Board for the period July 01, 2009 to June 30, 2010.

 

 

Commercial Banks Postal Address

1. African Banking Corporation Ltd. P.O. Box 46452-00100 Nairobi

2. Bank of Africa Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 69562-00400 Nairobi

3. Bank of Baroda (Kenya) Ltd. P.O. Box 30033-00100 Nairobi

4. Bank ofIndia Ltd. P.O. Box 30246-00100 Nairobi

5. Barclays Bank of Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 30120-00100 Nairobi

6. CFC Stanbic Bank Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 72833-00200 Nairobi

7. Charterhouse Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 43252-00100 Nairobi

8. Chase Bank (K) Ltd. P.O. Box 66049-00800 Nairobi

9. Citibank N.A. P.O. Box 30711-00100 Nairobi
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Commercial Banks Postal Address

10. City Finance Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 22741-00400 Nairobi

ll. Commercial Bank of Africa Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 30437-00100 Nairobi

12. Consolidated Bank of Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 51133-00200 Nairobi

13. Co-operative Bank of Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 48231-00100 Nairobi

14. Credit Bank Ltd.. P.O. Box 61064-00200 Nairobi

15. Development Bank of Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 30483-00100 Nairobi

16. Diamond Trust Bank KenyaLtd. P.O. Box 61711-00200 Nairobi

17. Dubai Bank (K) Ltd. P.O. Box 11129-00400 Nairobi

18. Ecobank Kenya Ltd. P.O Box 49584-00100 Nairobi

19. Equatorial Commercial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 52467-00200 Nairobi

20. Equity Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 75104-00200 Nairobi

21. Family Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 74145-00200 Nairobi

22. Fidelity Commercial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 34886-00100 Nairobi

23. Fina Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 20613-00200 Nairobi

24. First Community Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 26219-00100 Nairobi

25. Giro Commercial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 46739-00100 Nairobi

26. Guardian Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 67681-00200 Nairobi

27. Gulf African Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 43683-00100 Nairobi

28. Habib Bank AG Zurich P.O. Box 30584-00100 Nairobi

29. Habib Bank Ltd.. P.O. Box 43157-00100 Nairobi

30. Imperial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 44905-00100 Nairobi

31. 1&M Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 30238-00100 Nairobi

32. Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 48400-00100 Nairobi

33. K-Rep Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 25363-00603 Nairobi

34. Middle East Bank Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 47387-00100 Nairobi

35. National Bank of Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 72866-00200 Nairobi

36. NIC Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 44599-00100 Nairobi

37. Oriental Commercial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 44080-00100 Nairobi

38. Paramount Universal Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 14001-00800 Nairobi

39. Prime Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 43825-00100 Nairobi

40. Southern Credit Banking Corp. Ltd. P.O. Box 11666-00400 Nairobi

41. Standard Chartered Bank (K) Ltd. P.O Box 30003-00100 Nairobi

42. Trans-National Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 34353-00100 Nairobi

43. Victoria Commercial Bank Ltd. P.O. Box 41114-00100 Nairobi

Mortgage Finance Companies

1. Housing Finance Company of Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 30088-00100 Nairobi

2 S &L Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 45129-00100 Nairobi

Deposit Taking Micro FinanceInstitution

1. Faulu Kenya Ltd. P.O. Box 60240-00200 Nairobi

K. CHELOTI,

Director,
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